FIBABANKA A.S.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S LIMITED REVIEW REPORT,
UNCONSOLIDATED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND RELATED DISCLOSURES FOR THE

PERIOD ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2017

(Convenience translation of publicly announced unconsolidated
financial statements, related disclosures and auditor’s
review report originally issued in Turkish)



Giney Bagimsiz Denetimve  Tel : +90212 3153000
SMMM AS Fax:+90212 23082 91
Eski Bliylikdere Cad ey.com

o j Ticaret Sicil No: 479920-427502
Building a better Maslak
working world

Istanbul - Turkey

Convenience Translation of the Review Report
Originally Prepared and Issued in Turkish to English (See Note I in Section Three)

Interim Review Report on Unconsolidated Interim Financial Information
To the Board of Directors of Fibabanka A.S.

Introduction

We have reviewed the unconsolidated statement of financial position of Fibabanka A.S. (“the Bank™) at
September 30, 2017 and the related unconsolidated income statement, unconsolidated statement of income and
expense items under shareholders’ equity, unconsolidated statement of changes in shareholders’ equity,
unconsolidated statement of cash flows and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
notes to the unconsolidated financial statements for the nine-month-period then ended. The Bank Management
is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of interim financial statements in accordance with the
“Regulation on Accounting Applications for Banks and Safeguarding of Documents” published in the Official
Gazette n0.26333 dated November [, 2006, and other regulations on accounting records of Banks published by
Banking Regulation and Supervision Agency and circulars and interpretations published by Banking Regulation
and Supervision Authority and Turkish Accounting Standard 34 “Interim Financial Reporting” for those matters
not regulated by BRSA Legislation (together referred as “BRSA Accounting and Financial Reporting
Legislation™). Our responsibility is to express a conclusion on these interim financial statements based on our
review.

Scope of Review

We conducted our review in accordance with the Standard on Review Engagements (SRE) 2410, “Limited
Review of Interim Financial Information Performed by the Independent Auditor of the Entity”. A review of
interim financial information consists of making inquiries, primarily of persons responsible for financial
reporting process, and applying analytical and other review procedures. A review of interim financial information
is substantially less in scope than an independent audit performed in accordance with the Independent Auditing
Standards and the objective of which is to express an opinion on the financial statements. Consequently, a review
of the interim financial information does not provide assurance that the audit firm will be aware of all significant
matters which would have been identified in an audit. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion.

Basis of Qualified Conclusion

The accompanying unconsolidated financial statements as at September 30, 2017 include a general reserve which
does not meet the relevant criterias in TAS 37 "Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets" for
possible risks provided by the Bank Management for possible results of the circumstances which may arise from
possible changes in the economy and market conditions during the year of 2016 and within current period
amounting to TL 42,000 thousands out which TL 36,000 thousands and TL 6,000 thousands, respectively.
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Qualified Conclusion

Based on our review, except for the effect of the matter referred in the basis of qualified conclusion paragraph
on the prior and current period unconsolidated financial statements, nothing has come to our attention that causes
us to believe that the accompanying unconsolidated financial statements do not give a true view of the financial
position of Fibabanka A.$. at September 30, 2017 and of the results of its operations and its cash flows for the
nine-month-period then ended in all aspects in accordance with the BRSA Accounting and Financial Reporting
Legislation.

Report on other regulatory requirements arising from legislation

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the financial information
provided in the accompanying interim activity report in Section VII, are not consistent with the unconsolidated
financial statements and disclosures in all material respects.

Other Matter

The unconsolidated financial statements of the Bank as at and for the year ended December 31, 2016 and as at
and for the nine-month period ended September 30, 2016 were audited and reviewed by another audit firm, which
expressed a qualified opinion and an unqualified conclusion in their reports issued on February 17, 2017 and
November 10, 2016, respectively.

Additional paragraph for convenience translation to English

As explained in detail in Note I of Section Three, the effects of differences between accounting principles and
standards set out by regulations in conformity with BRSA Accounting and Financial Reporting Legislation,
accounting principles generally accepted in countries in which the accompanying unconsolidated financial
statements are to be distributed and International Financial Reporting Standards (“TFRS™) have not been
quantified in the accompanying unconsolidated financial statements. Accordingly, the accompanying
unconsolidated financial statements are not intended to present the financial position, results of operations and
changes in financial position and cash flows in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
such countries and TFRS.

Giiney Bagimsiz Denetim ve Serbest Muhasebeci Mali Miisavirlik Anonim Sirketi
ng Global Limited

November 6, 2017
Istanbul, Turkey

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
g



THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL REPORT OF
FIBABANKA A.S.
FOR THE NINE MONTHS PERIOD ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2017

Address : Esentepe Mah. Biiyiikdere Caddesi
No: 129 Sisli 34394 istanbul-Tiirkiye

Telephone :(212) 381 8282

Fax :(212) 2583778

Web Site : www.fibabanka.com.tr

Contact E-Mail  : senem.sarohan(@fibabanka.com.tr

The unconsolidated financial report for the nine months period prepared in accordance with the communiqué of
Financial Statements and Related Disclosures and Footnotes to be Announced to Public by Banks as regulated by
Banking Regulation and Supervision Agency, is comprised of the following sections:

¢ GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE BANK

e UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE BANK

e EXPLANATIONS ON THE CORRESPONDING ACCOUNTING POLICIES APPLIED IN THE
RELATED PERIOD

e INFORMATION ON FINANCIAL STRUCTURE AND RISK MANAGEMENT OF THE BANK

e EXPLANATORY DISCLOSURES AND FOOTNOTES TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAT,
STATEMENTS

e LIMITED REVIEW REPORT

e INTERIM ACTIVITY REPORT

The unconsolidated financial statements for the nine months period and the explanatory footnotes and disclosures,
unless otherwise indicated, are prepared in thousands of Turkish Lira, in accordance with the Communiqué on
Banks® Accounting Practice and Maintaining Documents, Turkish Accounting Standards, Turkish Financial Reporting
Standards, related communiqués and the Banks® records, have been independently reviewed and presented as
attached.

Hiisnii Mustafa | evzi /| / eVliit Hamdi er Mert ]flif'Alsej Se

A
Ozyegin ozer Aydin Utku Ozbey Akdas
Chairman of the Deputy Chairan of ~ Member of the ember of the Deputy Financial
Board of the Board of Audit Board of General Manager Control
Directors Directors and Committee Directors and and
Chairman of the General Reporting
Audit Committee Manager Department
Head

Information related to personnel to whom questions related to this financial report may be directed.
Name-Surname/Title : Ayse Akdas / Financial Control and Reporting Department Head
Telephone Number  :(212) 381 84 88

Fax Number 1(212) 2583778
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FIBABANKA A.S.

NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD OF 1 JANUARY- 30 SEPTEMBER 2017

(Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (TL) unless otherwise stated)

SECTION ONE
GENERAL INFORMATION

History of the Bank including its incorporation date, initial status and amendments to the initial
status

On 21 December 2001, Share Transfer Agreement was signed with Novabank S.A, for the sale of all
shares of Sitebank A.S. under the control of SDIF and the sale transaction was approved by the decision
of Banking Regulation and Supervision Agency (“BRSA”) Numbered: 596 on 16 January 2002.

In the General Assembly held on 4 March 2003, the name of Sitebank A.S. was amended as BankEuropa
Bankasi A.S.

In the Extraordinary General Assembly held on 28 November 2006, the name of BankEuropa Bankasi
A.S. was amended as Millennium Bank A.S.

On 27 December 2010, acquisition of the Bank by Credit Europe Bank N.V., which is an affiliate of Fiba
Holding A.S., was realized.

In the Extraordinary General Assembly held on 25 April 2011 the name of Millennium Bank A.S. was
amended as Fibabanka A.S, (“the Bank™),

Shareholder structure, shareholders having direct or indirect, joint or individual control over the
management and internal audit of the Bank, changes in shareholder structure during the current
period, if any and information on the Bank’s risk group

On 10 February 2010, Banco Comercial Portugues S.A. and Credit Europe Bank N.V., which is an
affiliate of Fiba Group, signed a share purchase agreement to transfer 95% of the Bank’s shares to Credit
Europe Bank N.V. and the legal approval process was completed as of 27 December 2010.

Credit Europe Bank N.V.’s share of capital increased from 95% to 97.6% after the capital increases
during 2011 and 2012. Fiba Holding A.S. became the ultimate parent of the Bank after acquiring 97.6%
of the shares from Credit Europe Bank N.V. on 3 December 2012 and 2.4% of the shares from Banco
Comercial Portugues S.A. on 7 December 2012. There were sales of equity shares to the management of
the Bank in 2013. As of 30 September 2017, total share of the management is 0.61%.

The Bank applied to the BRSA on 14 January 2015 for permission of the subordinated loan provided
from Fiba Holding A.S. in the amount of USD 50 million to be converted to share capital. Following the
authorization of the BRSA on 4 March 2015, the Board of Directors decision was taken on 5 March 2015
regarding share capital increase from TL 550,000 to TL 678,860. TL 127,045 of the increase was provided
by the subordinated loan granted by Fiba Holding A.S. which had been approved to be converted to
capital and TL 1,815 of total capital was paid in cash by the other shareholders, capital increase was
recognised in financial statements following the completion of the legal procedure on 7 May 2015.

The Bank’s paid-in capital amount of TL 678,860 was increased to TL 847,515 on 23 December 2015
with equal contributions from International Finance Corporation (“IFC”) and European Bank for
Reconstruction and Development (“EBRD”) amounting to TL 168,655 in total. In addition, share
issuance premium of TL 73,379 was recognised in the shareholders’ equity.
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FIBABANKA A.S.

NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD OF 1 JANUARY- 30 SEPTEMBER 2017

{Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (TL) unless otherwise stated)

Shareholder structure, shareholders having direct or indirect, joint or individual control over
the management and internal audit of the Bank, changes in shareholder structure during the
current period, if any and information on the Bank’s risk group (cont’d)

The Bank’s paid-in capital of TL 847,515 was increased by TL 93,646 on 7 September 2016 all by
TurkFinance B.V. to reach TL 941,161. In addition, TL 55,299 was recorded to equities as share

premium.

As of 30 September 2017, paid-in capital of the Bank is TL 941,161 and all paid in.

Explanations regarding the shares of the Bank owned by and areas of responsibility of the
Chairman and the members of Board of Directors, Audit Committee Members, Chief Executive
Officer, Executive Vice Presidents

Name Surname Title Assigned Date
Board of Directors

Hiisnii Mustafa Ozyegin Chairman 27-Dec-10
Fevzi Bozer Deputy Chairman 27-Dec-10
Mehmet Giilegei Member 27-Dec-10
Mevtiit Hamdi Aydin Member 24-Jan-13
ismet Kaya Erdem Member 11-Feb-13
Memduh Aslan Akgay Member 13-Apr-16
Selguk Yorgancioglu Member 22-Sep-16
Hiilya Kefeli Member 15-May-17
Omer Mert Member-General Manager 18-Jan-17
Audit Committee

Fevzi Bozer Member 27-Dec-10
Mevliit Hamdi Aydin Member 24-Jan-13
Assistant General Managers

EIif Alsev Utku Ozbey giﬂﬁg‘g‘;;f:g;“;ﬁ;;ing 07-Jan-11
Adem Aykin AGM - Information Technologies 01-Jul-11
Esra Osmanagaoglu AGM - Banking Operations 29-Feb-12
Kerim Lokman Kurig AGM - Corporate & Commercial Banking 01-Dec-15
Turgay Hasdiker AGM - Credits 01-Dee-15
Ahu Dolu AGM - Financial Institutions 01-Dec-15
Gergek Onal Chief Legal Counsel 01-Feb-16
Orhan Hatipoglu AGM - Direct Banking & Supporting Services 02-Jan-17
Omer Rifat Gencal AGM - Treasury 01-May-17
Sezin Erken AGM - Consumer Banking and Funding Resource 10-Aug-17

Management

The Bank’s equity shares owned by the individuals listed above are not material.
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FIBABANKA A.S.

NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD OF 1 JANUARY- 30 SEPTEMBER 2017

{Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (TL) unless otherwise stated)

Individuals and institotions that have qualified shares in the Bank

Share Amount Paid in Capital Unpaid
Name Surname/ Commercial Title (Nominal) Share Ratios (Nominal) Shares
Fiba Holding A.S. 673,147 71.52% 673,147 -
Hiisnii Mustafa (“)zyegin 666,433 70.81% 666,433 -

Summary information on the Bank’s services and activity areas

The Bank was incorporated as a privately owned bank authorized for customer deposit acceptance and
the Head Office of the Bank is located in Istanbul, Turkey. As of 30 September 2017, the Bank serves

with 80 domestic branches and 1,692 employees.

Other information

The Bank’s Commercial Title
The Bank’s Head Office Address

Fibabanka Anonim Sirketi
Esentepe Mah. Biiylikdere Caddesi

No:129 Sisli 34394 Istanbul

The Bank’s Phone and Fax Numbers

Telephone: (0212) 381 82 82

Fax :(0212) 25837 78
The Bank’s Web Site Address : www.fibabanka.com.tr

The Bank’s E-Mail Address

malikontrol @fibabanka.com.tr

Reporting Period : 1 January 2017 — 30 September 2017

The financial statements, related disclosures and notes in this report are prepared, unless otherwise stated,

in thousands of Turkish Lira (TL).

Current or likely actual or legal barriers to immediate transfer of equity or repayment of debts

between parent bank and its subsidiaries

None.



SECTION TWO

UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



FIBABANKA A.S.
UNCONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION)
AS OF 30 SEPTEMBER 2017

(Amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (TL).)

P CURRENT PERIOD PRIOR PERIOD
ABSETS ! Net {30/09:2017) (BU122016) )
i L FC Totsl T f FC f T

L CASHAND BALANCES WITH CENTRAL BANK i(511) 169,365 2,130,956 2,300,321 137977 ; 1,799,957 | 1,937,034
IL  FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT ot LOSS (Ne( (5.1.2) 519,785 12842 542,627 491,603 5992 497,685
21 Treding Fimancial Assets 529,785 12,8482 332627 491,693 | 5992 497,685
211 Governmest Débl Securities 17,684 4,008 21,692 17033 ¢ 5720 22753
212 Equity Securities - - .
213 Trading Derivative Financial Assets 470956 2,069 470,025 414739 | 265 215004
214 Other Marketable Securities 41,145 65 41310 59921 ; 7 59928
22 Financizl Assets at Fair Vajue fhrough Profit or Loss - - .
221 Government Debt Securities : . . -
222 Equity Saeorities ‘ - - .
223 Loass ; - - -
224 Otber Marketable Securities i - - .
M. BANKS l513) 207,694 96,925 124,619 Lz 56983 | 8,064
IV.  MONEY MARKET PLACEMENTS ; 103475 - 103,675 15,009 | 259,693 | 274,702
4.1 Interbank Money Markat Plecements ‘ - - .
42 Istanhul Shock Exchange Money Market Placements 103,675 103,675 15,609 | 259,693 | 274,702
43 Receivebles from Reverse Repurchase Agreements . . -
V.  FINANCIAL ASSETS AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE (Net) 19 175,965 658,761 834,726 174,433 | 712,793 887,226
$1  Shue Cerfificates 1,560 1,590 - 1019 1,018
52 Government Debt Securities 169,285 11,325 180,610 172433 11,418 183,851
53 Oiber Marketable Secarities 4,680 645,536 652,526 2,000 ! 700,356 702,356
VI LOANS (G515 10,181,217 1,079,185 14,260,402 7983452 | 3457820 11,441,272
6.1  Loks and Receivebles 9983716 4,079,185 14,062,90¢ 7854983 | 3457820 11312,803
611 Loans to Bank's Risk Group 729 21 756 122792 ! a8 122,840
6.1.2 Government Debt Secusities . - .
513 Olher 5,982,087 4,079,158 14,062,145 7,732,191 | 3457772 11,189,965
62 LomsuaderFollow-p 369,267 369,267 212,639 ¢ - 212,639
l63  Specific Provisions (3 171,766 171,766 B4,170 - - 51,170
VH, FACTORING RECEIVABLES . . . L . .
VIL HELD-TO-MATURITY SECURITEES (Net) (515) - - . . - .
8.1  Govemment Debt Securities . -
5.2 Oiber Marketabie Secorilies .
X ENVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Ney) Hk) 4357 - 4,897 - : -
0.1 Associstes Consalidated Based on. Equity Method - . ;
03 Unconsolidated Associatas 5897 4,897 - - .
921 Financial lvestments in Associates 4,897 4,897 . - .
$.2.2 Noo-Financial isvestnients in Associates - - -
X SUBSIDIARIES (Net) (518) 5445 - 5,445 5445 - 5,445
161 Financial Subsidiaries 5445 5445 5445 . 5,445
102 Non-Finaaciat Subsidiasies . - -
XL JOLNT VENTGRES (Net) {519} - - - - - -
[11.1  Joint Veatures Consolidated Based os Equity Method ; . .
112 Unconsolidated Foim Ventwres - - .
11.2.1 Finanriaf Joint Ventares - - -
11.2.2 Non-Fiazacial Joint Veotures - - -
X FINANCIAL LEASE RECEIVABLES (Net) 5110 - - . - N .
121 Fismeial Lease Receivables i - .
123 Operating Lease Receivables - - -
113 Oer . . .
124 UsearsedIncome (- ) - - -
XIE DERIVATIVE FINANCILAL ASSETS FOR HEDGING PURPOSES (3133 - . - - - .
13.F Faiz Value Hedge ; . . -
£3.2  Cesh Flow Hedge - . -
133 Foreign Net Investment Hedge - - .
XIV. TANGIBLE ASSETS (Net) {5112 186,188 - 186,188 186,199 | 186,199
XV. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Net) {3113 1,842 - 3842 387 | i 3979
151 Goodwill . . -
152 Other 1542 3342 3579 | - 3979
XVI. ENVESTMENT PROPERTY {Net) F - - - o R .
XVIL TAX ASSET 8,580 - 8530 3 . 3
:17.1 Cutrent Tax Asset 3 3 3 - 3
172 Deferred Tas Asset 8,577 8577 -t - .
XVIIL ASSETS HELD FOR SALE PURPOSEAND RELATED TO DISCONTINUE] 16,389 - 16,359 3,817 | - ast17
:13.1 Held for Sle ; 16,389 16,389 3817 - 3817
18.2  Relnted {0 Discontimed Operations ; - - -
XX OTHER ASSETS 5117) 60,656 17677 78,333 81614 | 15,569 97,183
TOTAL ASSETS 11,573,698 6996346 18,670,044 9,084,733 . 308,776 15,393,508

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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FIBABANKA A.S.

UNCONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION)

AS OF 30 SEPTEMBER 2017

{Amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (T1).)

: CURRENT PERIOD PRIOR FERIOD

LIABILIFIES | Note | Gr9017) (31122016

: 1L : ¥C H Toual 1L ¥C : Total

L DEPOSITS CELY 6510542 ¢ 560,707 : 11,681,248 s A0 301,003 ; 9,621,503
Il Depasis of Bank's Risk Grenp i 515,165 153860 | 8758% Q400 e 816241
2 ot : 5928 S0BM NATSAL SA15200 | 1550062 5262
IL  TRADING DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL LIABILITEES ¢ UL 819,900 | 8,048 527968 383,197 | 262 383459
I FENDS BORROWED i 15501 1,773,080 192,651 170 510443 1,536,663
IV. MONEY MARKETS : - 493,084 49,084 124 504,584 683825
1 {Finds fom Itervack Money Market - -
42 iFunds fram Ttachul Sioek Evchunge Mevey Maket i - . .
43 Fmds Provided Under Repushace Agreemenns : 38 21 1334 | 56458 453038
V.  SECURITIES ISSUED (Nef) | (5I4) L2367 | | 1223267 991975 ¢ 991875
51 Bl 3 §30387 | 1223387 BT eI
52 Lasset Backed Secuities ; : .
53 Bonds ; : o .
FL FeDs 3 - - - -1 -
6.1 Boower Fnds i 1\ - -
52 oer ; - -} -
VAL [AISCELLANEOUS PAYABLES Lsns) 64541 48,767 1330 59,858 | CADY JUAT
VHL iorﬂmmnn.mﬁs e8] 104 2501 101,69% Ny m a1
IL FACTORING PAYABLES : : - - -
X FTNANCIAL LEASE PAVABLES (Vef) : a3 a5 8 8
1) Fiancl Lease Payatles : ; m o) - CH 5
102 (Opersing Lexse Payabies i -
3 e ; .
104 Deferred Fimncial? ease Expenses (- ) : : 9 ) 4 4
ML BEDGIVG DERIVATIVE FESANCIAL LIABILITIES | R . . )
111 iFair Value Hedge : : -
12 iCashmeedge : .
13 Forelgn Net Inestment Hedge : : .
XIL. :PROVISIONS  (SILB 178.458§ 176,458 rigses, - 176,569
11! General Leam Loss Provisions 1353 11353 118 121387
[i22  Restructoring Proviicns : . .
(23 [Reserve for Egloye= Benefis ; 1 ; 1530 16394 1654
[24  [Insurance Technical Provisions et} { | ! . -
23 loder Provisions i 750 770 4035 40358
X TAYLIABRLITY | g 15279 . 3527 35424 4
(51 cwrem Tox Linkiiy | w2m! 150 2450 3
(132 Defered Tux Liskiy 1 : 1% 13
XIV, ‘PAVABLES RELATED TO ASSETS HELD FOR SALE AND DISCONTINVED | (51L.5) :

{OPERATIONS | N . . .
i1 ek e Sle Prpose ' - -
[i42  [Rehtedto Discontimed Operaions -1 -
XV, SCBORDEVATEDLOANS 1,109,285 1303385 Ay H 197278
VL. SHAREHOLDERS'EQUITY 029 1,410,443 120996 | (t8,103% 1,289,866
6.1 }pam-lmpsm 941,161 m,m; 945151
162 Capital Reserves (1,20 115807 115524 (1803} 105421
1621 jShare Premiom 12367 128678 12867
1622 Share Cencelition Profts . - -
1623 Marketable Secaides Vainztion Differences p {2363) {151) {1303} {0254
524 {Property 2nd Eqipment Revahiaton Differences H . .
16,25 riotanghble Assets Revabuation Differences : - . .
1626 |Lsvestmene Properties Revabuation Differences ; -
162.7 |Boous Shares fom Iovestments n Associates, Subsidiries and Joint Vemres i . .
1628 :Hedging Funds (EBfectve poston) -
162 | Accomniated Revabation Reserves o Asseis Hel for Sale and Discentinned Operaions - -
16.2.10:Cther Cagite] Reserves : (3033Y (3003) - (3003}
63 {prof Reserves : 243284 12836% 128369

: : 13835 (e - w0

239 i Wi 12053 . 1205

fitt ncome or Lass) 110001 10491 14915 ; 114915
i PeidsTcome or (L) : : ! . -

.2 {Corent Period Incosne or (E0sg) : 110871 § | 1515 | - 11815
iMinority Taterests {31013 R N . . : . .
TOTALLIBILITIES AND EQUITY : 10,031,300 ; 5,038,744 | 18,478,044 8,085,113 | 6,318,304 15,393,509

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements,
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FIBABANKA A.S.
UNCONSOLIDATED OFF-BALANCE SHEET COMMITMENTS
AS OF 30 SEPTEMBER 2017

(Amounts are expressed in thonsands of Turkish Lira (TL).)

CLRRENT PERIOD PRIOR FERIOD
Nota (3040920173 ¢31/12/2016)
= FC Foral L £C | Tota]

A OFF-BALANCE SHEET COMMITMENTS (1+1I+111) : 12,136,812 24,072,429 35210242 8,581,635 12,614,699 21,196,534
1 GUARANTEES AND WARRANTIES Ly 612,391 722,745 13354836 440172 : 897,026,
1.1. Leticrs of Griaremtes : £12058 26,708 335,763 439,122 603508

jRR1 Guarantees Subject to State Tender Law -
112 Guarznrees Given for Fareign Trade Operations. - .
113 Other Leaess of Guaramee 412,058 246,205 218,762 438,112 605,908
12 Bank Atceptances EEE 268,522 209,355 1,830/ 1831
121 lmport Letter of Acceptance - i
127 Otho Bank Acceptaces £33 258,502 208,355 1450 67,051
13 Leners of Credit - 267,518 267,518 B 224,067
131  Docomcntary Letas of Credit - - i
133 Ornher Leners of Credit 267,518 257,518 - 4,067
14 Prefinancing Given a3 Guacames - -
13 Endersemens. E E E - - -
151  Endorsements to the Central Back of Turkey . - - E
152  Other Endorsemens E E i . .
1.6 Puschaze Grarmtees for Seciriies Tasued B -
L% Farrering Gaarantees - . -
18.  Other Guarantees . - .
15, Other Collterals B .
", COMMITMENTS ; 1130278 LB18,135 010,413 542376 ) 848,428
2.1, Incvotable Commitments : (BHD 1,190278; 1526135 3058415 542376 E6%,423|
240 Assct Purchase Commitments ! £70,798! 16,135 2,390,953 85438 415,523
1.2 Dreposic Porcbase and Sales Coromirments - - -
213 Share Capital Comms 1o iates and Subsidiary E ol R
214  Loan Grasting Commuantats 282,144, 281144 171,368 . 171368
215 Tties lssue Brak C . i
X 16 E= for Reserve Requi - -
1.7 Commbments foc Cheque Pyments 204638 205,053 172,500 372,800
218 Tax and Fund Lisbties Boen Export Commimens 4370 1370 1230 4,230,
218  Commitments For Credt Card Limbs FIN) 124,14 104,475 101,475,
2.1.10  Commitnems for Credt Cards and Banking Services Promotions 1. 1 1 - 1

2,111 Receivables fom Shen Sale € of Mazleerabl o - E

[2.1.12  Pavables for Short Sale Canmitaents oF Marketable Securhies - - .|
2113 Other Inevoeable Commitments 2588, 2818 3046 - 3014
23, Revocatle Commitments - - - - - .
22l Revocatle Loan Gramting Commimmencs - - . . .
222 Other Revocable Commitments . - - - - -]
oL DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUAMENTS i (5TL5) 10,333,644 21,530,549, 31,864,193 7,599,087 11,831,793 19,430,850
f1 Hedging Derivasive Financial lnstraments R - .
100 Fai Vb Hedges - - R
312 CashFlew Hedges - R R
3.13 Fexeignt Nat awsuness Hedges - - -
b2 “Trading Derivative Financial Inttruments 14,335,644 2,530,548 31,561,183, rso0er 1L £5,430,380
.21 Foswand Farefgn Currency BuySel Transactions 745133 2548005 2487133 456674 1582210, 2038854
1211 Forwand Forelgn Cumency Transactor-Buy 133676 1,511,172 1,844,353 193451 . 1,018,870
1212 Foeward Fovelgn Cirrency Transacticns-Sel 407457 1,434,323 1,842,380 263,223 1022219
1.2%  Swap Transactions Related 16 Foreign Curpenty and Interest Rutes 6528612 11,769,862 18258 453 440,155 11576812
3221 Forcg Covensy Swap-Buy 2529541, 6555502 2128843 2410,286 3532130 5,943,499
3222  Foreig Curency Swap-Sek 3545078 5,178,460! #,115,535] 1935848 3943488 588313
3221  Intersir Rae Swap-Buy 25000 5,008 25.000; - 25,000
3. Inserest Rate Swap-Sell 25,000, 25,000 24,006 B 25,000
323  Foreign Carency, Imerest Rate and Secarities Optons 3563892 $214,657 9575.579 2742258, LINBIE 5315168
3231  Forelgn Corrency Options-Buy 1,801,113 3,342,019 4944,038 1,465,348 1,288,756 254165
3.2.32  Forcign Cunexcy Options-Sell 146,773 3471668, 1334441 1276850 1,483,170 2,761,020
3233 Inferest Rate Options-Bay - - .
3234 Intereit Rale Optious-Sell - E R
3235  Securites Optons-Buy B - -
3236  Sectrities Options-Selt - . -
3.2 Foreign Cavency Furres - o |
3241 Foreign Corpency Funmes-Buy . : K
3242  Foreygn Cutency Funires.Seit - K

325  Interest Rate Futwes -
3251  Inferest Rate Fatores-Buy - o
3252  Interest Rae Futores-5ed - -]
326  Other - -
B. CUSTODY AND PLEDGES RECEIVED (VAVAVT) $1,926, 388! 37,120,331 114,046,719 70,590,212, 103,778,307
TTEMS HELD IX CUSTODY 1,215,649 207,013, FAZ2,862) 951,083 1,273,53%
Custearer Fuod and Portfolio Balasces 12,642 342,642 160,517 E 166,517
Fvestment Securiies Held i Custody 128811 107,352] 29,561 77,188 T,bE8E 154304
Cheques Received for Collaction 543305 83,640 HIBHS 430,535 51,087, 551953
Cormereial Notes Recetved for Collecien 152352 16521 167873 126,333 4273 226,496)
Other Asiets Received for Callectisn ; B . i
Assets Received fir Public Offecing E E R
Othes Hems Under Custody 2434039 264,035, - 166139
Cuostodians : - . .
PLEDGES RECEIVED ! £0,710,738 35513318, 127,524,057 29,149 2,625,637 102,554,756
Marketable Securities 46200, 133,591 175,793 $5.142 53,239} 13,982
Guarantes Notes 126268 2E2,184 398,452 164,027 228,369
53 Commodisy .50 - 2500
'5.4 Wazranty . . .|
s Immevables 9442540 4,268,688 13,784,668 3,994,608 4,133,280 13,138,138
ke Ctlzer Pledgad hems 21,093,291 3RaLEEs 113,334,146 0712572 28378.,176; $5,041,047)
2] Pledged Iterns Deposhory . - |
V1. ACCEPTED BILL, GLARANTEES AND WARRANTEES . - - . J |
TOTAL OFF-BALANCE SHEET COMMITMENTS (A+B) 104,063,208 41,193,760 165,256,941, ATHLE4?, 45,502,794: 124,974,641

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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FiIBABANKA A.S.
UNCONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE PERIOD 1 JANUARY - 30 SEPTEMBER 2017

(Amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (TL).)

ICOMESTATEAENT Wole | CCRRENTPERIOD FREORPERIOD CURRENTPERIOD PRIORPERIOD
opoimotr | oo | puemte | oo
g e 040017 nw20g
L DTERESTINCOME Evn 13170 930504 S5 468 3867
M hueetosloms RroH ] 16587 6
(12 uerestos Reserve Reqiremests 13 M 8651 s
(13 IoewesBubs 510! ) 945 185
(14 Teeesten Mosey Markel Tramsavtions Y 1 138 5
M5 Reeeton Markeuhe Secuies Pt 3 034 o7 856
151 Tt Frmcil At ; wa 3 55
132 P Asses ot Fat Voo Thooogh Pro e Less - .
153 Avaiblefor-sle Foomcist s AR 7% 21 T
154 Fek-to- matmity Ivestroens -
(16 FrondLese loome .
(17 Oher Ioerest Tocome n: a n 8
IL  INTERESTEXPENSE 81887 £58.359 s 196,858
1 BloestorDepests vy G i 06 182357
(12 foleest oo Fonds Bermowed 1) ns 15438 117 17410
(15 Ifetest Expense on Mones Market Trasartions ! & m
(24 Trles! om Somatcs Fsoed ) 1037 6135 B4 P
(35 Orher fesest Exgensis 0! 855 2819 255
. ¥ETINTERESTINCOME (I} 458 IS 1BHY JETATH
V. NETFEESANDCOMMISSIONSINCOME A6 1p343 12518 4069
41 Feesand Comisins Received s 50 HE 11
s ¥moadbless R 7% e 2464
$2 O G g 16 I560; 34
"2 Feeand Commioons Paid 2 15706 9,0155 7841
421 Nencash Loars i 168 £ $l
121 O TR na! 15538 T 149
Y, DRNIDENDINCOME (I3 4 . . .
IVl TRADNGINCONE (1085 () (5IV4) &gy 16,358 {t4247) B39
[61 ToadsgCas Lo o Semis A 5358 381 un
62 Gais/ (Losses) oo Derivative Férncial Trausactions on Hin {ass) 123
63 FordpnEnchonge G/ Lasses) {550 (1581 {#39) )
VIL  OTHER OPERATING INCOME GG 9! ®762 19,082 16541
VIL  TOTALOPERATING INCOME (II<IV+V+VI+iT) S87 457006 185484 16512
& PROVISION FORLOAN LOSSES AND OTHER RECEIVABLES () GIVE 14702 154 608 20
% OTHEROPERATING EXPENSES () EIVH 2371 20262 93311 44
M. NECOPERATIVG INCOMEALOSS) (VIILIS-Y) LM HigH oo 148
ML  EXCESS AMOUNT RECORDED ASINCOME AFTER MERCER - - - §
XL INCGMEALOSS) FROM ENVESTMENTS I¥ SUBSEDIARIES CONSOLIDATED BASED ON EQUITY METHOD - ; - .
XV,  IXCOME{LOSS}ON NET HONETARY POSTTION 5 . . .
¥,  PROFITZ05S BEFORE TAXFROM CONTIUED OPERATIONS (Xi+...<XIV) Vs) 197804 1185 o 248
XL TAXFROVISIONFOR CONTEVUED OPERATIONS {3 GNg iy 25%) 9.554) Q4857
H1 Ctmen Tax Prvision ER By 47 3159
%2 Defored Tax Provisin pg! 944 1y {55
XVIL  CURRENTPERIOD PROFTTALOSS FROM CONTIVUED OPERATIONS (XVAXYE S0 110091 81,391 7,48 "412
XVEE  EXCOME FROM DISCONTENCED OPERATIONS . . -
181 Income from Nog-cumvent Assers He for Sale -1
1 Foft from Sehs of Astociates, Subsfiries and febm Verrures .
183 Tooome fiom Other Discontimed Operatiens -
FX  EXPENSESTORDISCONTEYUED OPERATIONS (} . . .
195 Expenses for Noo-cuent Assefs Held for Sile -
192 Lossbom Saesof Associze, Sobsiariesand T Venares .
193 Enpeases for Other Discentimed Operations -
XU  PROFIZ0S5 BEFORE TAXFROMDISCONTINUED OFERATIONS (SWIIXEY) -] ) )
XSL  TAXPROVISION FOR DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS &) - . .
Al Coet Tas Provisica :
N2 Deferred Tax Provisin .
XOL  CURRENTPERIOD PROFIFLOSS FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (eXSh) - . . .
XVIL  NETINCOME{LOSS) (XVIHYXID BRI 1091 nyl L 3412
Bl Grog'sProftloss 118991 : nul 1436 #41)
B2 Myt iy : l .
Farings per Share 2017 600638 n,ecmoi 006038

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements,
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FIBABANKA A.S.

UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME AND EXPENSES ACCOUNTED UNDER SHAREHOLDERS’
EQUITY

FOR THE PERIOD 1 JANUARY - 30 SEPTEMBER 2017

(Amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (TL).)

ISCOME AND EXPENSES ACCOUNTED INDER SHAREHOLDERS' EQUTFY CURRENT FERIOD PRIOR PERIOD
[UALINT-00200T) | (DLA120t6-30006/2016)

=

ADDITIONS TOMARKETABLE SECYRITIES REVALUATION RESERVES FROM FINANCIAL SSSETS AVALABLE FOR SALE 12857
TANGIELE ASSETS REVALUATION RISERVES

INTANGEBLE ASSETS REVALUATION RESERVES

TRANSLATION ADJUSTMENT FORFOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS

FROZITEGSS OX CASE FLOW HEDGE DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL ASSETS (Efzctive Portion of the Cheages in the Fair Value)

3825

2=H H

-

VL FROFILLOSS ONNITFORTGK INVESTMENT EEDGE DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL ASSETS (Efective Percioe)

yp  TBLEFFECTOF CORRECTHONS OF THE ERRORS AND CHANGLS IN ACCOUNIING POLICY
TIL  OTHER INCOMEANTHEXPENSES RECOGNISED [N EQUTFY IV ACCORDANCE WITHTAS
X DEFERRED TAXEFFECT OF REVALEATION

{457 o6
¥ NETINCOMLENPENSE BIRECILY RECOGNISED INEQUITY (1s.. 4IN) - -
{.  PROFFAOSSFOR THE FERIOD 98 81,200
111 NetChengein FairVake of Morketabls Secunties {Transfer to ProfitLoss) ) 056
U2 Th Poriion of Cash Fow Hedge Derivative Fiuancial Assets Reclassified and Fresented on the income Statement
113 The oction of Eeign it Lrestment Sadge Desvatoe Fintacisl Aspers Recasetied and Presded onthe Incor Bistement
03 g o nm
ML TOTALFROFT/LOSS RECOGNISEDFOR THE PERIOD (%S]) 104 6142

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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FIBABANKA A.S.
UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE PERIOD 1 JANUARY - 30 SEPTEMBER 2017

(Amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (TL).)

L1

LLL
112
113
Lid4
Lis
116
117
1.i.8
1148

12

121
122
L23
124
1.2.5
1.2.6
1.2.7
128
129

L

F

[N IR - P N VI -

PR R I R

D

vi.

VIL

CURRENT PERIOD PRIOR PERIOD
Note (01701/2017-30/6372017) (01/01/2016-30/09/20£6}
CASH FLOWS FROM BANKING OPERATIONS
Operating profit before changes in operating assets and Habilitles 339,868 228,786
Enterest received 1,252,6™ 892,567
Tnterest paid 792,828 523,054
Dividend reccived - -
Fees and commissions recetved 34,720 32,476
Other income 122,082 5,213
Coliections from previously writien-off loans and other receivables 1,943 2,663
Payments to personnel and service suppliers 246,250 151,336
Tazcs paid 57,328 47,187
Other (15,148) (13,846}
Changes in operating assets and labilities (1,896,370) (778:373)
Net decrease in trading sécuritics £9,988 (43,640)
Net (mcrease} / decrease in fair value through profit{loss) financial assets - -
Net {increase} ¢ decrease in duc from banks and other financial institubions {237,482) {212,150)
Ner {inerease} / decrease in loans (2,017,138) {1,662,655)
Net {increasc) / decrease in other assets 24,601 (74,887)
Neti /{d ) in bank dep 212,076 BE,435
Ner 1(d yin other dep 1,769,056 553,383
Net increase / {decrease) i funds borrowed 252,241 425,966
Net inerease / {decrease) in payables - -
1.2.10 Net increase / (decrease} in other fzbilites {249,712} 153,973
Net cash provided from banilng operations (756,505) {543,789
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES - -
Net cash provided from hivesting setivities £1,952 {102,468}
Cash paid for eequisition of investnents, rssociaes pnd subsidiaries 4,807 .
Cash obtained from disposal of nvestments, iates and subsidiari - -
Purchases of property and squipment 6,570 4,061
Diisposals of property and equipment 1,481 2,608
Cash paid for purchase of inv fable-for-sale 95,065 483,883
Cash obrained from sale of investments available-for-sale 159,017 348,822
Cauh paid for purchase of investment securities - -
Cash oblemed from sale of investment securities - -
Other (2,004 £1,052)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES - -
Net cash provided from finaneing activides 919,652 430,356
Cash obtained frem funds borrowed 2ad secunities issucd 2,301,960 1,577.968
Cash nsed for repayment of funds borrowed and seeuriiics issued 2,088,315 1,102.420
Essued equity instruments 706,007 148,945
Dividends paid - .
Payments for finence leases - -
Other - 205,863
Effect of change In foreign exchange rate on cash and cash equivalents 1,949 5,361
Net increase fu cash and cash equivalents (J+I+II4IV) 217,048 183 460
Cashk and cash equivatents at beginning of the period 764,378 201,410
Cash and cash equivalents st end of the period 921,476 384,870

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

10




IL.

FIBABANKA A.S.

NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD OF 1 JANUARY - 30 SEPTEMBER 2017

(Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (TL) unless otherwise stated.)

SECTION THREE
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Explanations on the basis of presentation

Preparation of the financial statements and the accompanying footnotes in accordance with
Turkish Accounting Standards and the Communiqué on Principles and Procedures on the
Accounting Practice and Documentation of Banks

The unconsolidated financial statements are prepared within the scope of the “Regulation on Accounting
Applications for Banks and Safeguarding of Documents” related with Banking Act numbered 5411
published in the Official Gazette numbered 26333 dated 1 November 2006 and in accordance with “the
Banking Regulation and Supervision Agency (“BRSA™) Accounting and Reporting Regulations™
including the regulations, communiqués, interpretations and legislations related to accounting and
financial reporting principles published by the Banking Regulation and Supervision Agency (“BRSA™),
and in case where a specific regulation is not made by BRSA, “Turkish Accounting Standards” (“TAS")
and “Turkish Financial Reporting Standards” (“TFRS”) and related appendices and interpretations put
into effect by Public Oversight Accounting and Auditing Standards Authority (“POA”). The format and
content of the publicly announced unconsolidated financial statements and notes to these statements
have been prepared in accordance with the “Communiqué on Publicly Announced Financial Statements,
Explanations and Notes to These Financial Statements”and “Communiqué On Disclosures About Risk
Management To Be Announced To Public By Banks” and amendments to this Communiqué. The Bank
maintains its books in Turkish Lira in accordance with the Banking Act, Turkish Commercial Code and
Turkish Tax Legislation.

The financial statements are prepared in thousands of TL based on the historical cost convention, except
for the financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value.

Accounting policies and valuation principles applied in preparation of financial statements

The accounting policies and valuation principles used in the preparation of the financial statements are
selected and applied in accordance with the requirements set out in regulations, communiqués,
statements and guidance and if there is no special regulation by the BRSA in accordance with to the
principles within TAS/TFRS. The accounting policies and valuation principles applied in the preparation
of the accompanying financial statements are explained in Notes Il and XXIV below.

Additional paragraph for convenience translation

The differences between accounting principles, as described in these preceding paragraphs and
accounting principles generally accepted in countries in which unconsoclidated financial statements are to
be distributed and International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS™) have not been quantified in these
unconsolidated financial statements. Accordingly, these unconsolidated financial statements are not
intended to present the financial position, results of operations and changes in financial position and cash
flows in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in such countries and IFRS.

Explanations on the usage strategy of financial instruments and on foreign currency transactions
Usage strategy of the financial instruments

The major factor in managing interest rate and liquidity risk at the balance sheet is parallel movement
of asset and liability side.

Currency risk, interest rate risk and liquidity risk are controlled and measured by various risk
management systems, and the balance sheet is managed under the limits set by these systems and the
limits legally required. Value at risk models are used for this purpose.

Purchase-sale transactions of short and long-term financial instruments are realized within pre-
determined risk limits that are allowed for the purpose of increasing risk-free return on capital.

The foreign currency position is controlled by the equilibrium of a currency basket to eliminate the
currency risk.
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2.2

IIL.

Iv.

FIBABANKA A.S.

NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD OF 1 JANUARY - 30 SEPTEMBER 2017

(Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (TL) unless otherwise stated.)

Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency exchange rates used in converting transactions denominated in foreign currencies
and their presentation in the financial statements

The Bank recognizes the foreign currency transactions in accordance with TAS 21 “The Effects of
Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates”, Foreign exchange gains and losses arising from the foreign
currency transactions as of balance sheet date are translated into Turkish Lira by using the exchange
rates at the date of the transaction and recognized in accounting records. At the end of the periods, foreign
currency assets and liabilities are converted into Turkish Lira by using the spot foreign currency
exchange rates of the Bank at the end of the period and the related currency translation differences are
recognized as foreign exchange gains and losses.

As at the end of the related periods, the Bank’s foreign currency exchange rates are in full TL as follows:
30 September 2017 31 December 2016

US Dollar 3.5521 3.5192
Euro 4.1924 3.7099

Foreign exchange gains and losses included in the income statement

As of 30 September 2017, net foreign exchange loss included in the income statement amounts is TL
5,542 (1 January — 30 September 2016: TL 3,504 loss).

Explanations on affiliates and subsidiaries

In the unconsolidated financial statements, affiliates and subsidiaries are accounted in accordance with
the “Turkish Accounting Standard on Separate Financial Statements”(“TAS 27”) and presented in the
financial statements according to their costs.

Explanations on forward transactions, options and derivative instruments

The Bank’s derivative transactions mainly consist of foreign currency swaps, interest rate swaps, foreign
currency options and forward foreign currency purchase/sale contracts, The Parent Bank does not have
any embedded derivatives separated from the host contract.

In accordance with TAS 39 "Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement", forward foreign
currency purchase/sale contracts, swaps and options are classified as "hedging purpose" and "trading
purpose” transactions. Derivatives are initially recognized at cost including the transaction costs. Also,
the assets and liabilities arising from the derivative transactions are recorded as off-balance sheet items
at their contractual notional amounts.

Explanations on derivative financial instruments held for trading

The derivative transactions held for trading are valued at fair-value using market prices or pricing modeis
subsequent to initial recognition and are presented in “derivative financial assets held for trading” or
"derivative financial liabilities held for trading” items of the balance sheet depending on the difference's
being positive or negative.

Explanations on derivative financial instruments held for risk management
The Bank enters into cross currency swap transactions in order to hedge the change in fair values of

fixed-rate financial instruments. According to fair value hedge accounting, the changes in fair values of
hedging instrument and hedged item are recognised in income statement.

12
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1.2

FIBABANKA A.S.

NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD OF 1 JANUARY - 30 SEPTEMBER 2017

(Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (TL) unless otherwise stated.)

Explanations on derivative financial instruments held for risk management (cont’d)

If the hedging is effective, the changes in fair value of the hedged item, which is fixed rate TL
denominated loans, are presented in statement of financial position together with the hedged item. The
derivative transactions held for risk management are valued at fair-value using market prices or pricing
models subsequent to initial recognition and are presented in “derivative financial assets held for risk
management” or “derivative financial liabilities held for risk management” items of the balance sheet
depending on the difference's being positive or negative.

The Bank performs effectiveness test at the beginning of the hedge accounting period and at each
reporting period. The hedge accounting is applied as long as the test results are between the range of
80%-125% of effectiveness. The hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrument expires,
is exercised, sold or no longer effective. When discontinuing fair value hedge accounting, the cumulative
fair value changes in carrying value of the hedged item arising from the hedged risk are amortised to
income statement over the life of the hedged item from that date of the hedge accounting is discontinued.

Explanations on interest income and expenses

Interest income and expenses for financial assets and liabilities, are recognized on accrual basis by using
the effective interest rate method. The Bank ceases accruing interest income on non-performing loans
and reverses any interest income accrued from such loans. No income is accounted until these loans are
classified as performing or collected, according to the related regulation.

Explanations on fee and commission income and expenses

Fee and commission income / expenses are recognized based on cash basis or accrual basis upon the
nature of the transaction.

Explanations on financial assets

Financial assets include cash on hand, contractual rights to receive cash or another financial asset from
the counterparty or the right to exchange of financial instruments or equity instrument transactions of
the counterparty. Financial assets are classified into four groups as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, held to maturity investments, loans and receivables and available-for-sale financial assets.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets held for trading

Financial assets held for trading are recognized at their fair values and any gains or losses resulting from
such valuation are recorded in the profit and loss accounts. Interests received during the holding period
of such financial assets and the difference between the amortized cost (calculated using internal rate of
return) and the acquisition cost are recognized as interest income in the income statement. Gains and
losses on sale of held for trading financial assets before their maturities and the difference between
market value and amortized cost (calculated using internal rate of return) of such financial assets are
recognized in trading gains and losses on securities under income statement.

" Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The Bank does not have any financial assets designated as “financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss™.
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Financial assets available for sale

Financial assets available-for-sale, are financial assets other than assets held for trading purposes,
investments held-to-maturity and originated lpans and receivables. Financial assets available-for-sale are
measured at their fair values subsequently.

Interest income of the investment securities available-for-sale; based on the internal rate of return: is
included in the income statement. Unrecognized gain/losses derived from the difference between their
fair value and the discounted values are recorded in “Marketable Securities Revaluation Reserve” under
the shareholders’ equity. In case of disposal, gains/losses recognized under equity are realized and
recognized directly in the income statement.

Purchase and sale transactions of securities are accounted for on a settlement date basis.
Held to maturity investments

The Bank does not have any held to maturity investments as of 30 September 2017.
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are financial assets, which are generated by providing funds, goods or services to
the debtor.

Loans and recetvables are financial assets with fixed or determinable repayment schedules and they are
not traded in an active market.

Loans are initially measured at their acquisition cost and subsequently measured at amortized cost
calculated by using effective interest rate method in accordance with TAS 39 “Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement”. Duty charges, transaction fees and other expenses paid for the
collaterals of the loans are considered as part of the transaction costs and charged to the customers.

The Bank classifies its loans and receivables to related groups and calculates specific or general
provisions in accordance with the “Regulation on the Procedures and Principles for Determination of
Qualifications of Loans and Other Receivables by Banks and Provisions to be set aside” published in the
Official Gazette dated 1 November 2006, numbered 26333 and by considering other regulations and
explanations announced by BRSA.

Explanations on impairment of financial assets

Financial assets or groups of financial assets are reviewed by the Bank at each balance sheet date to
determine whether there is objective evidence of impairment. If any such indicator exists, the Bank
determines the amount of impairment.

Impairment loss incurs if, and only if, there is objective evidence that the reliably estimated future cash
flows of financial asset or group of financial assets are adversely affected by an event(s) (“loss event(s)™)
incurred subsequent to initial recognition.

The Bank provides specific and general allowances for loans and other receivables classified in

“accordance with the Communiqué published on the Official Gazette Numbered 2633 dated November

1, 2006. The allowances are recorded in the income statement of the related period.
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Explanations on offsetting financial instruments

If the fair values of equity shares held for trading and quoted at the stock exchanges are lower than their
carrying values, allowance for impairment is recognized and the net value is shown on the balance sheet.

Specific allowances for non-performing loans and other receivables are provided in accordance with
“Methods and Principles for the Determination of Loans and Other Receivabies to be Reserved for and
Allocation of Reserves”. Such allowances are offset with loans under follow-up on the asset side. Other
financial assets and liabilities are offset when the Bank has a legally enforceable right to offset.

Explanations on sale and repurchase agreements and securities lending transactions

Securities subject to repo (repurchase agreements) are classified as “Financial assets at fair value through
profit and loss”, “Financial assets available for sale” or “Investments held to maturity” according to their
purposes to be held in the Bank’s portfolio and evaluated within the principles of the relevant portfolio.
Funds obtained from repurchase agreements are classified under the “Funds provided under repurchase
transactions” account in liabilities, and interest expense accruals are calculated using the effective
interest (internal rate of return) method on the difference between the sales and repurchase prices
corresponding to the period designated by a repurchase agreement.

Reverse repo transactions are recorded under the “Receivables from reverse repurchase agreements”
account,

Explanations on noncurrent assets held for sale and discontinued operations and the related
liabilities

A tangible asset (or a disposal group) classified as “asset held for sale” is measured at the lower of the
carrying value or fair value less costs to sell. Assets held for sale are not depreciated and presented in
the financial statements separately. An asset (or a disposal group) is regarded as “asset held for sale”
only when the sale is highly probable and the asset (or disposal group) is available for immediate sale in
its present condition. For a highly probable sale, there must be a valid plan prepared by the management
for the sale of asset including identification of possible buyers and completion of sale process.
Furthermore, the asset should be actively marketed at a price consistent with its fair value.

Events or circumstances may extend the period to complete the sale beyond one year. An extension of
the period required to complete a sale does not preclude an asset (or disposal group) from being classified
as held for sale if the delay is caused by events or circumstances beyond the entity's control and there is
sufficient evidence that the entity remains committed to its plan to sell the asset (or disposal group).

A discontinued operation is a part of the Bank’s business classified as disposed or held-for-sale. The
operating results of the discontinued operations are disclosed separately in the income statement.
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Explanations on goodwill and other intangible assets

As at the balance sheet date, there is no goodwill in the accompanying financial statements. The
intangible assets of the Bank consist of software, intangible rights and other intangible assets.

The costs of the intangible assets purchased before 1 January 2005 are recognized at their inflation
adjusted costs as of 31 December 2004 and intangible assets purchased after 1 January 2005 are
recognized at their acquisition cost less accumulated amortization and impairment, if any.

Estimated useful lives of the intangible assets are 3 to 10 years, and amortization rates are 10% to 33.3%.

If there is objective evidence of impairment, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated in accordance
with the Turkish Accounting Standard 36 (TAS 36) “Impairment of Assets” and if the recoverable
amount is less than the carrying value of the related asset, an allowance for impairment is recognized.

Explanations on tangible assets

Tangible assets are measured at cost in accordance with the Turkish Accounting Standard 16 (TAS 16)
“Tangible Assets”.

The costs of the tangible assets purchased before 1 January 2005 are recognized at their inflation
adjusted costs as of 31 December 2004 and tangible assets purchased after 1 January 2005 are recognized
at their acquisition cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any.

If there is objective evidence of impairment, the asset's recoverable amount is estimated in accordance
with the Turkish Accounting Standard 36 (TAS 36) "Impairment of Assets" and if the recoverable
amount is less than the carrying value of the related asset, an allowance for impairment is recognized.

Gains/losses from the sale of the tangible assets are calculated as the difference between the net book
value and the net sales price.

Maintenance and repair costs incurred for tangible assets are recorded as expense.
There are no restrictions such as pledges, mortgages or any other restriction on tangible assets.

There are no changes in the accounting estimates that are expected to have an impact in the current or
subsequent periods.

Depreciation rates and estimated useful lives used for the tangible assets are as follows:

Tangible Asset

Estimated useful lives

Depreciation Rate

(Years) (%)
Safe boxes 2-50 2-50
Vehicles 5 20
Real estate 50 2
Other tangible assets 4-50 2-25

Explanations on leasing transactions

Duration of financial leasing contracts is maximum 4 years. Tangible assets obtained via financial leasing
are classified as the Bank’s assets or liabilities resulting from financial leasing according to its nature.
Assets obtained via financial leasing are depreciated in accordance with the principals for tangible assets.
Rent payments for operating leases are recorded at equal amounts as expense during the payment period.
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Explanations on provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions and contingent liabilities are accounted in accordance with TAS 37 "Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets”. In the financial statements, a provision is made if there is a present
obligation that arises from past events as of the balance sheet date, if it is probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and if a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation. If the amount is not reliably estimated and there is no
probability of cash outflow from the Bank to settle the liability, the related liability is considered as
“contingent” and disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

Provisions recognized during the period are recognized within “other operating expenses”; reversals of
provisions recognized in the prior periods are recognized within “other operating income”.

Explanations on contingent assets

The contingent assets usually arise from unplanned or other unexpected events that give rise to the
possibility of an inflow of economic benefits to the Bank. If an inflow of economic benefits has become
probable, then the contingent asset is disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. If it has become
virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits will arise, the asset and the related income are
recognized in the financial statements of the period in which the change occurs.

Explanations on liabilities for employee benefits

As per the existing labour laws and agreements in Turkey, entities are required to pay severance for the
employees retired or fired. These payments are qualified as recognized retirement benefit plan according
to revised TAS 19 Standard on the Benefits Provided to Employees. Severance payment liability
recognized in the balance sheet is calculated according to the net present value of expected amount in
the future arising from all employees’ retirements and represented in financial statements. All the
actuarial gains and losses as are accounted for as other comprehensive income.

The major assumptions used in the actuarial calculation are as follows:

- Calculation is based on discount rate of 11.50%, inflation rate of 8.00% and real rate of rise in salary
of 0.00%.

- Effective as of 31 December 2016, ceiling salary amount is considered as TL 4,297.21 (full TL).
- Individuals’ earliest retirement age is considered as retirement age.
- CSO 1980 mortality table is used for the death probabilities of male and female employees.

There is no employee foundation, fund or similar institutions.
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Explanations on taxation

Current Tax

Effective from I January 2006, statutory income is subject to corporate tax at 20%. This rate is applied
to accounting income modified for certain exemptions (like dividend income)} and deductions (like
investment incentives), and additions for certain non-tax deductible expenses and allowances for tax
purposes.

If there is no dividend distribution planned, no further tax charges are made. Dividends paid to the
resident institutions and the institutions working through local offices or representatives are not subject
to withholding tax. As per the decisions numbered 2009/14593 and numbered 2009/14594 of the
Council of Ministers published in the Official Gazette numbered 27130 dated 3 February 2009, certain
duty rates included in the articles numbered 15 and 30 of the new Corporate Tax Law numbered 5520
are revised. Accordingly, the withholding tax rate on the dividend payments other than the ones paid to
the non-resident instituticns generating income in Turkey through their operations or permanent
representatives and the resident institutions is 15%. In applying the withholding tax rates on dividend
payments to the non-resident institutions and the individuals, the withholding tax rates covered in the
related Double Tax Treaty Agreements are taken into account. Appropriation of the retained earnings to
capital is not considered as profit distribution and therefore is not subject to withholding tax.

The prepaid taxes are calculated and paid at the rates valid for the earnings of the related years. The
prepayments can be deducted from the annual corporate tax calculated for the whole year earnings.

In accordance with the Turkish tax legislation, tax losses can be carried forward to offset against future
taxable income for up to five years. Tax losses cannot be carried back to offset profits from previous
periods.

In Turkey, there is no procedure for a final and definite agreement on tax assessments. Companies file
their tax returns with their tax offices by the end of 25th of the fourth month following the close of the
accounting period to which they relate. Tax returns are open for five years from the beginning of the
year that follows the date of filing during which time the tax authorities have the right to audit tax
returns, and the related accounting records on which they are based, and may issue re-assessments based
on their findings.

Deferred Tax

The Bank calculates and recognizes tax for taxable temporary differences arising between the carrying
values of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and their corresponding balances considered in
the calculation of the tax base according to the Turkish Accounting Standard 12 (TAS 12) “Income
Taxes”.

As of 30 September 2017, the deferred tax asset is TL 8,577 (31 December 2016: TL 1,374 deferred tax
liability). The deferred tax asset is calculated as the net of taxable and deductible temporary differences.

Deferred tax benefit/(charge) is recognized within “Deferred tax benefit/(charge)” in the income
statement. For the current period, deferred tax benefit is TL 12,548 (1 January — 30 September 2016:
TL 944 deferred tax benefit). Deferred tax effects of the transactions and events recognized directly in
the equity are also recognized directly in the equity which is TL 2,597 charge as of 30 September 2017
(30 September 2016: TL 963 charge).

Transfer pricing

The article 13 of the Corporate Tax Law describes the issue of transfer pricing under the title of
“disguised profit distribution” by way of transfer pricing. “The General Communiqué on Disguised
Profit Distribution by Way of Transfer Pricing” published at 18 November 2007, explains the application
related issues on this topic.
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Transfer pricing (cont’d)

According to this Communiqué, if the taxpayers conduct transactions like purchase and sale of goods or
services with the related parties where the prices are not determined according to the arm’s length
principle, then it will be concluded that there is a disguised profit distribution by way of transfer pricing.
Such disguised profit distributions will not be deducted from the corporate tax base for tax purposes.

As stated in the “7.1 Annual Documentation” section of this communiqué, the taxpayers are required to
fill out the “Transfer Pricing, Controlled Foreign Entities and Thin Capitalization” form for the purchase
and sale of goods or services conducted with their related parties in a taxation period, attach these forms
to their corporate tax returns and submit to the tax offices. Related forms are submitted to tax offices on
time.

Additional explanations on borrowings

The Bank provides resources by using loans from domestic and foreign foundations and issuing bonds
and bills.

Borrowing funds are initially measured at acquisition cost and subsequently measured at amortized cost.
In the accompanying financial statements, foreign currency denominated borrowing funds are translated
to Turkish Lira with the Bank’s spot foreign exchange buying rates and interest expenses incurred during
the period relating to the borrowing funds are recognized in income statement.

The Bank applies general hedging techniques for mitigating the liquidity risk, interest rate risk and
currency risk of the borrowing funds. Those techniques do not meet the definition of hedge accounting
according to TAS 39.

Explanations on share certificates issued

None.

Explanations on bank acceptances and bills of guarantee

Bank acceptances and bills of guarantee are presented within off-balance sheet liabilities as being
possible liabilities and commitments. Cash transactions relating to bank acceptances and bills of
guarantee are realized concurrently with the customer payments.

As of the balance sheet date, there are no bank acceptances and bills of guarantee recognized as liability
against an asset.

Explanation on government incentives

As of the balance sheet date, the Bank does not have any government incentives.

Explanations on segment reporting

Segment reporting is presented in the section four, note VIL
Other matters

None.
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SECTION FOUR
FINANCIAL POSITION AND RISK MANAGEMENT

Total capital and capital adequacy ratio have been calculated in accordance with the “Regulation on
Equity of Banks” and “Regulation on Measurement and Assessment of Capital Adequacy of Banks”.

As of 30 September 2017, the Bank's total capital has been calculated as TL 2,611,541, capital adequacy
standard ratio is 17.52% (As of 31 December 2016, the Bank’s total capital amounted to TL 1,783,126,
capital adequacy standard ratio was 13.48%).

Explanations related to the components of shareholders’ equity

Amount as
Current | per the
Period Regulation
(30/09/2017) | Before
Amount | 1/1/2014 (*)

Other comprehensive income according to TAS --

Profit 110,091

Current period profit 110,091

Prior period profit -
Bonus shares from associates, subsidiaries and joint-ventures not accounted in current period's
profit -

Tier I Capital Before Deductions 1,423,214

Deductions From Tier I Capital

TIER I CAPITAL
Paid-in capital to be entitled for compensation after all creditors 941,161 B
Share premium 128,678
Reserves 243,284

Valuation adjustments calculated as per the Article 9. (i) of the Regulation on Bank Capital -

Current and prior periods' sosses not covered by reserves, and losses accounted under equity
according to TAS (-) 12,871

Improvement costs for operating leasing () 9,606

Goodwill and other intangible assets and related deferred taxes (-) -

Other intangibles other than mortgage-servicing rights (net of related tax liability) 3,074

Excess amount arising from deferred tax assets from temporary differences -

Differences arise when assets and liabilities not held at fair value, are subjected to cash flow
hedge accounting -

Total credit losses that exceed total expected loss calculated according to the Regulation on
Calculation of Credit Risk by Internal Ratings Based Approach --

Securitization gains -
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Current
Period
(30/09/2017)
Amount

Amount as
per the
Regulation
Before
1/1/2014 (*)

Net amount of defined benefit plans

Direct and indirect investments of the Bank on its own Tier I Capital (-}

Shares obtained against Article 56, Paragraph 4 of the Banking Law (-)

Total of net long positions of the investments in equity items of unconsclidated banks and
financial instituticns where the Bank owns 10% or less of the issued share capital exceeding the
10% threshold of above Tier I Capital (-)

Total of net long positions of the investments in equity items of unconsolidated banks and
financial institutions where the Bank owns 10% or more of the issued share capital exceeding the
10% threshold of above Tier [ Capital (-)

Mortgage servicing rights exceeding the 10% threshold of Tier I Capital (-}

Net deferred tax assets arising from temporary differences exceeding the 10% threshold of Tier I
Capital (-)

Amount exceeding the 15% threshold of Tier [ Capital as per the Article 2, Clause 2 of the
Regulation on Measurement and Assessment of Capital Adequacy Ratios of Banks (-}

The portion of net long position of the investments in equity items of unconsolidated banks and
financial institutions where the Bank owns 10% or more of the issued share capital not deducted
from Tier I Capital (-)

Excess amount arising from mortgage servicing rights

Excess amount arising from deferred tax assets from temporary differences (-)

Other items to be defined by the BRSA

Deductions from Tier [ Capital in cases where there are no adequate Additional Tier I or Tier II
Capitals

Total Deductions From Common Equity Tier I Capital

25,551

Total Common Equity Tier I Capital

1,397,663

ADDITIONAL TIER I CAPITAL

Preferred stock not included in Tier I capital and the related share premiums

Debt instruments and the related issuance premiums defined by the BRSA

Debt instruments and the related issuance premiums defined by the BRSA (Covered by
Temporary Article 4)

Additional Core Capital before Deductions

Deductions from Additional Core Capital

Direct and indirect investments of the Bank on its own Additional Tier I Capital (-)

Investments in equity instruments issued by Banks or financial institutions invested in Bank's
Additional Tier I Capital and having conditions stated in the Article 7 of the Regulation

The total of net long position of the direct or indirect investments in Additional Tier I Capital of
unconsolidated banks and financial institutions where the Bank owns more than 10% of the
issued share capital (-)
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Current
Period
(30/09/2017)
Amount

Amount as
per the
Regulation
Before
1/1/2014 (%)

The total of net long position of the direct or indirect investments in Additional Tier I Capital of
unconsolidated banks and financial institutions where the Bank owns more than 10% of the
issued share capital (-)

Other items to be defined by the BRSA (-)

Items to be Deducted from Tier I Capital during the Transition Period

Goodwill and other intangible assets and related deferred tax liabilities which will not deducted
from Common Equity Tier I capital for the purposes of the first sub-paragraph of the Provisicnal
Article 2 of the Regulation on Banks® Own Funds (-)

768

Net deferred tax asset/liability not deducted from Tier I Capital as per the Temporary Article 2,
Clause 1 of the Regulation on Measurement and Assessment of Capital Adequacy Ratios of
Banks (-)

Deduction from Additional Tier I Capital when there is not enough Tier II Capital (-)

Total Deductions from Additional Tier I Capital

Total Additional Tier I Capital

Total Tier I.Capital (Tier I Capital=Common Equity+Additional Tier I Capital)

1,396,895

TIER IT CAPITAL

Debt instruments and share issue premiums deemed suitable by the BRSA

1,101,151

Debt instruments and share issue premiums deemed suitable by BRSA (Temporary Article 4)

Provisions (Article § of the Regulation on the Equity of Banks)

113,535

Tier II Capital before Deductions

1,214,686

Deductions from Tier TI Capital

Direct and indirect investments of the Bank on its own Tier II Capital (-)

Investments in equity instruments issued by banks and financial institutions invested in Bank’s
Tier Il Capital and having conditions stated in the Article 8 of the Regulation

Total of net long positions of the investments in equity items of unconsolidated banks and
financial institutions where the Bank owns 10% or less of the issued share capital exceeding the
10% threshold of above Tier I Capital (-)

Total of net long position of the direct or indirect investments in Additional Tier I Capital and
Tier I Capital of unconsolidated banks and financial institutions where the Bank owns 10% or
more of the issued share capital exceeding the 10% threshold of Tier I Capital (-)

Other items to be Defined by the BRSA (-}

Total Deductions from Tier IT Capital

Total Tier II Capital

1,214,686

Total Equity (Total Tier I and Tier H Capital)

2,611,581
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Current
Period
(30/09/2017)
Amount

Amount as
per the
Regulation
Before
1/1/2014 (*)

Total Tier I Capital and Tier II Capital ( Total Equity}

Loans granted against the Anticles 50 and 51 of the Banking Law (-)

Net book values of movables and immovable exceeding the limit defined in the Article 57,
Clause 1 of the Banking Law and the assets acquired against overdue receivables and held for
sale but retained more than five years (-)

Other items to be defined by the BRSA (-)

40

Items to be Deducted from the Sum of Tier I and Tier II Capital (Capital) During the
Transition Period

The portion of total of net long positions of the investments in equity items of unconsolidated
banks and financial institutions where the Bank owns 10% or less of the issued share capital
exceeding the 10% threshold of above Tier [ Capital not deducted from Tier I Capital, Additional
Tier I Capital or Tier II Capital as per the Temporary Article 2, Clause 1 of the Regulation {-)

The portion of total of net long positions of the investments in equity items of unconsolidated
banks and financial institutions where the Bank owns more than 10% of the issued share capital
exceeding the 10% threshold of above Tier I Capital not deducted from Additional Tier I Capital
or Tier I Capital as per the Temporary Article 2, Clause 1 of the Regulation (-)

The portion of net long position of the investments in equity items of uncensolidated banks and
financial institutions where the Bank owns 10% or more of the issued share capital, of the net
deferred tax assets arising from temporary differences and of the mortgage servicing rights not
deducted from Tier I Capital as per the Temporary Article 2, Clause 2, Paragraph (1) and (2) and
Temporary Article 2, Clause 1 of the Regulation (-)

EQUITY

Total Capital { Total of Tier I Capital and Tier II Capital )

2,611,541

Total Risk Weighted Assets

14,909,552

CAPITAL ADEQUACY RATIOS

Core Capital Ratio (%)

9.37

Tier 1 Capital Ratio (%)

9.37

Capital Adequacy Ratio (%)

17.52

BUFFERS

Bank-specific total Core Capital Ratio

4.50

Capital Conservation Buffer Ratio (%)

1.25

Bank-specific Counter-Cyclical Capital Buffer Ratio (%)

0.02
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Amount as
Current | per the
Period Regulation
(30/09/2017) | Before
Amount | 1/1/2014 (*)
The ratio of Additional Common Equity Tier I capital which will be calculated by the first
paragraph of the Article 4 of Regulation on Capital Conservation and Countercyclical Capital
Buffers to risk weighted assets 0.03 --
Amounts lower than Excesses as per Deduction Rules -- --
Remaining total of net long positions of the investments in equity items of unconsolidated banks
and financial institutions where the Bank owns 10% or less-of the issued share capital -- -
Remaining total of net long positions of the investments in Tier 1 Capital of unconsolidated
banks and financial institutions where the Bank owns more than 10% or less of the Tier I Capital - --
Remaining mortgage servicing rights - --
Net deferred tax assets arising from temporary differences - -
Limits for Provisions Used in Tier II Capital Calculation - -
General provisions for standard based receivables (before tenthousandtwentyfive limitation) 113,535 -
Up to 1.25% of total risk-weighted amount of general reserves for receivables where the standard
approach used 113,535 —

Total loan provision that exceeds total expected loss calculated according to Communiqué on
Calculation of Credit Risk by Internal Ratings Based Approach

Total loan provision that exceeds total expected loss caleulated according to Communiqué on
Calculation of Credit Risk by Internal Ratings Based Approach, limited by 0.6% risk weighted
assets

Debt Instruments Covered by Temporary Article 4
(effective between 1.1.2018-1.1.2022)

Upper limit for Additional Tier I Capital items subject to Temporary Article 4

Amount of Additional Tier I Capital items subject to Temporary Article 4 that exceeds upper
limit

Upper limit for Additional Tier II Capital items subject tc Temporary Article 4

Amount of Additional Tier II Capital items subject to Temporary Article 4 that exceeds upper
limit

* The amounts to be considered under the transitional provisions.
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Amount as
per the
Prior Period | Regulation
(31/12/2016) | Before
Amount | 1/1/2014 (*)
TIER I CAPITAL

Paid-in capital to be entitled for compensation after all creditors 941,161 B
Share premium 128,678
Reserves 128,369
Other comprehensive income according to TAS -
Profit 114,915

Current period profit 114,915

Prior period profit -
Bonus shares from associates, subsidiaries and joint-ventures not accounted in current period's
profit .
Tier I Capital Before Deductions 1,313,123

Deductions From Tier I Capital

Valuation adjustments calculated as per the Article 9 (i) of the Regulation on Bank Capital -- )
Current and prior periods’ losses not covered by reserves, and losses accounted under equity -
according to TAS (-) 23,257
Improvement costs for operating leasing (-) 10,968 -
Goodwill and other intangible assets and related deferred taxes (-) -
Other intangibles other than mortgage-servicing rights (net of related tax liability) 2,387 -

Excess amount arising from deferred tax assets from temporary differences

Differences arise when assets and liabilities not held at fair value, are subjected to cash flow
hedge accounting

Total credit losses that exceed total expected loss calculated according to the Regulation on
Calculation of Credit Risk by Internal Ratings Based Approach

Securitization gains
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Prior Period
(31/12/2016)
Amount

Amount as
per the
Regulation
Before
1/1/2014 (*)

Net amount of defined benefit plans

Direct and indirect investments of the Bank on its own Tier ] Capital (-)

Shares obtained against Article 56, Paragraph 4 of the Banking Law (-}

Total of net long positions of the investments in equity items of unconsolidated banks and
financial institutions where the Bank owns 10% or less of the issued share capital exceeding the
10% threshold of above Tier I Capital (-)

Total of net long positions of the investments in equity items of unconsolidated banks and
financial institutions where the Bank owns 10% or moere of the issued share capital exceeding the
10% threshold of above Tier I Capital (-)

Mortgage servicing rights exceeding the 10% threshold of Tier I Capital (-)

Net deferred tax assets arising from temporary differences exceeding the 10% threshold of Tier I
Capital (-)

Amount exceeding the 15% threshold of Tier I Capital as per the Article 2, Clause 2 of the
Regulation on Measurement and Assessment of Capital Adequacy Ratios of Banks (-)

The portion of net long position of the investments in equity items of unconsolidated banks and
financial institutions where the Bank owns 10% or more of the issued share capital not deducted
from Tier I Capital (-}

Excess amount arising from mortgage servicing rights

Excess amount arising from deferred tax assets from temporary differences (-)

Other items to be defined by the BRSA

Deductions from Tier I Capital in cases where there are no adequate Additional Tier I or Tier II
Capitals

Total Deductions From Common Equity Tier I Capital

36,612

Total Common Equity Tier I Capital

1,276,511

ADDITIONAL TIER I CAPITAL

Preferred stock not included in Tier I capital and the related share premiums

Debt instruments and the related issuance premiums defined by the BRSA

Debt instruments and the related issuance premiums defined by the BRSA (Covered by
Temporary Article 4)

Additional Core Capital before Deductions

Deductions from Additional Core Capital

Direct and indirect investments of the Bank on its own Additional Tier I Capital (-)

Investments in equity instruments issued by Banks or financial institutions invested in Bank’s
Additional Tier I Capital and having conditions stated in the Article 7 of the Regulation

The total of net long position of the direct or indirect investments in Additional Tier I Capital of
unconsolidated banks and financial institutions where the Bank owns more than 10% of the
issued share capital (-)
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Prior Period
{31/12/2016)
Amount

Amount as
per the
Regulation
Before
1/1/2014 (*)

The total of net long position of the direct or indirect investments in Additional Tier I Capital of
unconsolidated banks and financial institutions where the Bank owns more than 10% of the
issued share capital (-)

Other items to be defined by the BRSA (-)

Items to be Deducted from Tier I Capital during the Transition Period

Goodwill and other intangible assets and related deferred tax liabilities which will not deducted
from Common Equity Tier I capital for the purposes of the first sub-paragraph of the Provisional
Article 2 of the Regulation on Banks’ Own Funds (-)

1,592

Net deferred tax asset/liability not deducted from Tier [ Capital as per the Temporary Article 2,
Clause 1 of the Regulation on Measurement and Assessment of Capital Adequacy Ratios of
Banks (-)

Deduction from Additional Tier I Capital when there is not enough Tier II Capital (-)

Total Deductions from Additional Tier I Capital

Total Additional Tier I Capital

Total Tier I Capital (Tier I Capital=Common Equity+Additional Tier I Capital)

1,274,919

TIER IT CAPITAL

Debt instruments and share issue premiums deemed suitable by the BRSA

387.112

Debt instruments and share issue premiums deemed suitable by BRSA (Temporary Article 4)

Provisions (Article & of the Regulation on the Equity of Banks)

121,287

Tier II Capital before Deductions

508,399

Deductions from Tier IT Capital

Direct and indirect investments of the Bank on its own Tier Il Capital {-)

Investments in equity instruments issued by banks and financial institutions invested in Bank’s
Tier II Capital and having conditions stated in the Article 8 of the Regulation

Total of net leng positions of the investments in equity items of unconsolidated banks and
financial institutions where the Bank owns 10% or less of the issued share capital exceeding the
10% threshold of above Tier I Capital (-)

Total of net Iong position of the direct or indirect investments in Additional Tier 1 Capital and
Tier I1 Capital of unconsolidated banks and financial institutions where the Bank owns 10% or
more of the issued share capital exceeding the 10% threshold of Tier I Capital (-)

Other items to be defined by the BRSA (-)

Total Deductions from Tier II Capital

Total Tier II Capital

508,399

Total Equity (Total Tier I and Tier II Capital)

1,783,318
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Prior Period
(31/12/2016)
Amount

Amount as
per the
Regulation
Before
1/1/2014 (*)

Total Tier I Capital and Tier II Capital { Total Equity)

Loans granted against the Articles 50 and 51 of the Banking Law (-)

66

Net book values of movables and immovable exceeding the limit defined in the Article 57,
Clause 1 of the Banking Law and the assets acquired against overdue receivables and held for
sale but retained more than five years (-)

Other items to be defined by the BRSA (-}

Items to be Deducted from the Sum of Tier I and Tier II Capital (Capital) During the
Transition Period

The portion of total of net long positions of the investments in equity items of unconsolidated
banks and financial institutions where the Bank Owns 10% or less of the issued share capital
exceeding the 10% threshold of above Tier I Capital not deducted from Tier I Capital, Additional
Tier I Capital or Tier II Capital as per the Temporary Article 2, Clause 1 of the Regulation (-)

The portion of total of net long positions of the investments in equity items of unconsolidated
banks and financial institutions where the bank owns more than 10% of the issued share capital
exceeding the 10% threshold of above Tier I Capital not deducted from Additicnal Tier I Capital
or Tier IT Capital as per the Temporary Article 2, Clause 1 of the Regulation (-)

The portion of net long position of the investments in equity items of unconsclidated banks and
financial institutions where the Bank owns 10% or more of the issued share capital, of the net
deferred tax assets arising from temporary differences and of the mortgage servicing rights not
deducted from Tier I Capital as per the Temporary Article 2, Clause 2, Paragraph (1} and (2) and
Temporary Article 2, Clause 1 of the Regulation (-)

EQUITY

Total Capital ( Total of Tier I Capital and Tier II Capital)

1,783,126

Total Risk Weighted Assets

13,228,391

CAPITAL ADEQUACY RATIOS

Core Capital Ratio (%)

9.65

Tier I Capital Ratio (%)

9.64

Capital Adequacy Ratio (%)

13.48

BUFFERS

Bank-specific total Core Capital Ratio

4.50

Capital Conservation Buffer Ratio (%

0.63

Bank-specific Counter-Cyclical Capital Buffer Ratio (%)
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Amount as
per the
Prior Period | Regulation
(31/12/2016) | Before
Amount 1/1/2014 (*)
The ratio of Additional Common Equity Tier I capital which will be calculated by the first
paragraph of the Article 4 of Regulation on Capital Conservation and Countercyclical Capital
buffers to risk weighted assets 0.05 -
Amounts lower than Excesses as per Deduction Rules - --
Remaining total of net long positions of the investments in equity items of uncensolidated banks
and financial institutions where the Bank owns 10% or less of the issued share capital - --
Remaining total of net long positions of the investments in Tier [ Capital of unconsolidated
banks and financial institutions where the Bank owns more than 10% or less of the Tier I Capital -- --
Remaining mortgage servicing rights - --
Net deferred tax assets arising from temporary differences . -
Limits for Provisions Used in Tier II Capital Caleulation 121,287 -
General provisions for standard based receivables (before tenthousandtwentyfive limitation) 121,287 --

Up to 1.25% of total risk-weighted amount of general reserves for receivables where the standard
approach used

Total loan provision that exceeds total expected loss calculated according to Communiqué on
Calculation of Credit Risk by Internal Ratings Based Approach

Totat loan provision that exceeds total expected loss calculated according to Communiqué on
Calculation of Credit Risk by Internal Ratings Based Approach, limited by 0.6% risk weighted
assets

Debt Instruments Covered by Temporary Article 4
(effective between 1.1.2018-1.1.2022)

Upper limit for Additional Tier I Capital items subject to Temporary Article 4

Amount of Additional Tier I Capital items subject to Temporary Article 4 that exceeds upper
limit

Upper limit for Additional Tier II Capital items subject to Temporary Article 4

Amount of Additional Tier II Capital items subject to Temnporary Article 4 that exceeds upper
limit

* The amounts to be considered under the transitional provisions.
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Explanations on reconciliation of shareholder’s equity items to balance sheet:

The difference between “Equity” in equity table and “Shareholder’s Equity” in the unconsolidated
balance sheet mainly arises from the subordinated loan, bonds and general provisions. In the calculation
of Total Capital, general provision up to 1.25% of credit risk is taken into consideration as Tier II Capital.

On the other hand, in the calculation of the "Equity”, improvement costs for operating leases followed
under tangible assets in the balance sheet, and related deferred tax liabilities, other items defined by the
regulator are taken into consideration as amounts deducted from Total Capital.

Items included in shareholder’s equity calculation:

Issuer

Fibabanka A.S.

Eco Trade And
Development Bank*

Code of debt instrument (CUSIP, ISIN etc.)

X81386178237

®

BRSA’s "Regulation on
Equities of Banks" dated 1
November 2006 and

BRSA’s "Regulation on
Equities of Banks" dated 1
November 2006" and

Regulation of debt instrument English Law English Law
Consideration Status in Shareholders’ Equity Calculation

Situation of being subject to practice of being taken into

consideration with 10% deduction after 1/1/2015 No No

Validity situation of consolidated or unconsolidated based or Unconsolidated and Unconsolidated and

consolidated and unconsolidated based Consolidated Consolidated

Type of debt instrument Subordinated Bond Subordinated Loan
Considered amount of shareholders’ equity calculation (By last
report date of — Thousand TL) 1,065,630 35,521
Nominal value of debt instrument (Thousand TL) 1,065,630 33,521
Subordinated Debt Subordinated
Related account of debt instrument Instruments Loan
Issuance date of debt instrument 24/03/16-10/05/2017 06/08/13
Maturity structure of debt instrument (Demand/Time) Time Time
Beginning term of debt instrument i1 years 10 years

Whether there is right of reimbursement of issuer or not according
to BRSA rules

There is a right to
reimbursement

There is a right to
reimbursement

Opticnal reimbursement date, options of conditional reimbursement
and reimbursement amount

24/11/2022; 300 million
usp

06/08/2018; 10 million
USD

Following reimbursement option dates

None

None

*Represents subordinated loan provided from Eco Trade and Development Bank.
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Interest/Dividend Payments

Fixed or floating interest/dividend payments

Floating interest

Floating interest

Until optional
reimbursement date
7.75% (5-years mid-
swap rate + 5.578%);
after then, updated 5-
years mid-swap

Interest rate or index value of interest rate rate+5.758% Libor + 8.5%

The Bank can not pay

dividends if becomes

overdue according to

subordinated loan

Whether there is any restriction to stop payment of capital bonus or not None agreement.

Feature of being full optional, partially optional or obligatory Obligatory Obligatory
Whether there is any stimulant to repayment like interest rate hike or

not None None

Feature of being cumulative or noncumulative

Feature of being convertible bonds

If there is convertible bonds, trigger incidents cause this conversion

Regulation Article 8.2 (§)

If there is convertible bonds, feature of full or partially conversion

If there is convertible bonds, rate of conversion

If there is convertible bonds, feature of conversion —oligatory or
optional-

If there is convertible bonds, types of convertible instruments

If there is convertible bonds, exporter of convertible debt instruments

Feature of value reducement

If there is a feature of value reducement, trigger incidents cause this
reducement

If there is a feature of value reducement, feature of full or partially
reducement of value

If there is a feature of value reducement, feature of being constant of
temporary

If there is a feature of value reducement, mechanism of value
incrementation

Claiming rank in case of winding up (Instrument that is just above debt
instrument)

Whether meeting the conditions defined by 7th or 8th articles of
Shareholders’ Equity of Banks Regulation

Meets the conditions
defined by 8th article,
does not meet the
conditions defined by
7th article.

Meets the conditions
defined by 8th article,
does not meet the
conditions defined by
Tth article.

The conditions not met which were defined by 7th or 8th of the 7th or
8th articles of Shareholders’ Equity of Banks Regulation
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Explanations on risk management

Notes and explanations in this section have been prepared in accordance with the “Communiqué On
Disclosures About Risk Management To Be Announced To Public By Banks™ that have been published
in Official Gazette numbered 29511 on 23 October 2015 and became effective as of 31 March 2016. As
the Bank uses the standard approach for the calculation of capital adequacy, the following tables those
have to be disclosed in accordance with the Communiqué on a quarterly basis were not presented by the
Bank as of 30 September 2017:

-CR8

- RWA flow statements of credit risk exposures under IRB (Internal Ratings Based)

- CCR7 - RWA flow statements of CCR exposures under the Internal Model Method (IMM)

-MR2 - RWA flow statements of market risk exposures under an IMA

Overview of Risk Weighted Amounts

Minomum
Risk Weighted Amounts Capital
Requirements
Current Period | Prior Period | Current Period
1 | Credit risk (excluding counterparty credit risk) (CCR}) 12,789,949 11,713,786 1,023,196
2 | Of which standardised approach (SA) 12,789,049 11,713,786 1,023,196
3 | Of which internal rating-based (IRB) approach -- - -
4 | Counterparty credit risk 711,065 662,570 56,885
5 ?SfA \twgié:ll;\;;tandardised approach for counterpary credit risk 711,065 662,570 56,885
6 | Of which internal model method (IMM) - -- -
7 Eqpity positio_n in banking book under basic risk weighting . . .
or internal rating-based
8 | Equity investments in funds — look-through approach 33,582 44,943 2,687
9 | Equity investments in funds — mandate-based approach -- - -
10 Equity investments in funds — 1250% risk weighting _ B ~
approach
11 | Settlement risk -- - -
12 | Securitisation exposures in banking book - - -
13 | Of which IRB ratings-based approach (RBA) - - --
14 | Of which IRB supervisory formula approach (SFA) - - -
15 Of which SA/simplified supervisory formula approach _ _ B
(SSFA)
16 | Market risk 487,938 153,788 39,035
17 | Of which standardised approach (SA) 487,938 153,788 39,035
18 | Of which internal model approaches (IMM) - - -
19 | Operational risk 887,018 653,305 70,961
20 | Of which basic indicator approach 887,018 653,305 70,961
21 { Of which standardised approach - - -
22 | Of which advanced measurement approach - - -
23 Amqunts below thfa thrcs.holds for deduction from capital B _ B
{subject to 250% risk weight)
24 | Floor adjustment - - -
25 | Total (1+4+7+84+9+10+11+12+16+19+23+24) 14,909,552 13,228,392 1,192,764
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Explanations on currency risk

Position limit on currency risk is determined in line with net general position standard ratio on foreign
currency. The Bank does not take foreign exchange and parity risk; transactions are usually hedged.
Measurable and manageable risks are taken within legal limits.

As of 30 September 2017, the Bank's net foreign currency short position is TL 131,492 (31 December
2016: TL 125,488 short position} resulting from short position on the balance amounting to
TL 1,301,262 (31 December 2016: TL 376,413 long position) and long position on the off-balance sheet
amounting to TL 1,169,770 (31 December 2016: TL 501,901 short position). “Standard Method” is used
in legal reporting to measure the foreign exchange risk.

The announced current foreign exchange buy rates of the Bank as of balance sheet date and the previous
five working days in full TL are as follows:

US Dollar purchase rate as at the balance sheet date TL 3.5521

Euro purchase rate as at the balance sheet date TL 4.1924
Date USD EUR
26 September 2017 3.5162 4.1818
27 September 2017 3.5344 4.1747
28 September 2017 3.5657 4.1891
29 September 2017 3.5720 42023
30 September 2017 3.5521 4.1924

Simple arithmetic means of foreign exchange rates in September 2017 are TL 3.4619 or US dollar, and
TL 4.1381 for Euro (Full basis TL).
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II1. Explanations on currency risk (cont’d)
Current Period EUR USD Other Total
Assets
Cash (Cash in TL, Cash in Foreign Currency,
Cash in Transit, Cheques Purchased) and 234,458 1,552,622 343,876 2,130,956
Balances with the Central Bank of Tutkey
Banks 7,342 83,856 5,727 96,925
Financial Assets at Fair Value through
Profit/Loss (*) 378 4,395 - 4,773
Interbank Meoney Market Placements - - -- “-
Financial Assets Available for Sale 82,047 576,714 - 658,761
Loans (**) 3,014,329 1,316,291 106,154 4,436,774

Subsidiaries, Associates and Entities Under

Common Control (Joint Vent.) - - -
Investments Held to Maturity -- - - -
Derivative Financial Assets Held for Hedging

Purposes - - -- -
Tangible Assets -- - a --
Intangible Assets - - — -
Other Assets (*%%) 685 1,831 1 2,517
Total Assets 3,339,239 3,535,709 455,758 7,330,706
Liabilities .

Banks Deposits 104,671 481,854 39,034 625,559
Foreign Currency Deposits 739,009 3,754,458 61,591 4,555,148
Interbank Money Market Received 58,128 434,956 - 493,084
Funds Borrowed from Other Financial

Institutions 973,579 833,689 1,913 1,809,181
Sundry Creditors 7,347 41,357 63 48,767

Marketable Securities Issued - - - -
Derivative Financial Liabilities Held for

Hedging Purposes - -- - -
Other Liabilities(¥****) 25,120 1,075,109 - 1,100,229
Total Liabilities 1,907,944 6,621,423 102,601 8,631,968
Net Balance Sheet Position 1,431,295 (3,085,714) 353,157 (1,301,262)
Net Off-Balance Sheet Position (1,475475) 2,999,030 (353,785) 1,169,770
Financial Derivative Assets{**¥%#) 3,627,014 8,347,890 249,491 12,224,395
Financial Derivative Liabilities(****%) 5,102,489 5,348,860 603,276 11,054,625
Non-Cash Loang (ki) 203,332 519,414 -- 722,746
Prior Period

Total Assets 2,769,187 3,549,207 376,254 6,694,648
Total Liabilities 1,785,647 4,490,878 41,710 6,318,235
Net Balance Sheet Position 983,540 (941,671) 334,544 376,413
Net Off-Balance Sheet Position (1,015,278) 810,480 (297,103) (501,901)
Derivative Financial Assets(¥###*) 2,245,247 3,495,502 86,823 5,827,972
Derivative Financial Liabilities(*####) 3,260,525 2,685,422 383,926 6,329,873
Non-Cash Loans (¥##%%¥) 139,807 316,902 145 456,854

(*) The balance does not include trading derivative assets discount amounting to TL 8,069,

(**) The balance includes foreign currency indexed loans and accruals amounting to TL 357,589,

(***) The balance does not include TL 15,160 of prepaid expenses.

(****) The balance does not include trading derivative liabilities discount amounting to TL 8,068,

(*#***} In the current period, exchange purchase commitments within the derivative financial assets amounted to TL 770,797 (31 December
2016: TL 182,784), exchange sale commitments within the derivative financial liabilities amounted to TL 1,007,867 (31 December 2016: TL
143,268).

(***%%%) There is no effect on the net off-balance sheet position.
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Explanations on interest rate risk

Interest sensitivity of assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet items are evaluated weekly by considering
market developments in the Asset-Liability Committee.

Standard method and asset-liability risk measurement methods are used to measure the bank’s interest
rate risk.

Measurements by employing the standard method are carried out monthly by using maturity ladder. Bank
applies interest rate shock analysis to interest rate sensitive assets and liabilities considering historic
economic crises. Change in the net present value of the net assets of the Bank is monitored within the
limits set by the Board of Directors.

Interest rate sensitivity of assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet items (Based on repricing dates):

Uptol 1-3 312 15 Over  Non-interest
Current Period End Month Months Months Years 5 Years Bearing Total
Assels
Cash (Cash in TL, Cash in
Foreign Currency, Cash in
Transit, Cheques Purchased)
and Balances with the Central
Bank of Turkey 1,650,301 - - - - 650,020 2,300,321
Banks 290,297 - - - -- 34,322 324,619
Financial Assets at Fair
Value Through Profit or Loss 50,392 40,300 66,523 355,966 3,672 25,274 542,627
Interbank Money Market ‘
Placements 103,675 - - - - - 103,675
Financial Assets Available-
for-Sale 1,759 9,085 94,702 632,929 94,662 1,589 834,726
Loans 2,070,572 3,992,379 2,185,615 4,842,164 972,171 197,501 14,260,402
Investment Securities Held-
to-Maturity - -- -- - - - -
Other Assets (*) - - - - - 303,674 303,674
Total Asscts 4,166,996 4,042,264 2,346,840 5,831,059 1,070,505 1,212,380 18,670,044
Liabilities
Bank Deposits 517,234 56,692 4,135 - - 116,696 694,757
Other Deposits 6,638,886 2,886,258 731,160 26,630 - 713,558 10,996,492
Interbank Money Market
Received 386,755 106,329 - - - - 493,084
Sundry Creditors - - - - - 113,309 113,309
Marketable Securities Issued 326,475 207,995 688,797 - - - 1,223,267
Funds Borrowed from Cther
Financial Institutions 176,572 1,086,595 563,511 1,074 - - 1,827,752
Qther Liabilities (*%) 17.675 56,457 66,853 388,518 1,065,649 1,726,231 3,321,383
Total Liabilities 8,063,597 4,400,326 2,054,456 416,222 1,065,649 2,669,794 18,670,044
Balance Sheet Long Position - - 292,384 5,414,837 4,856 - 5,712,077
Balance Sheet Short Position  (3,896,601) (358,062) -- - - (1,457.414) (5,712,077)
Off-Balance Sheet Long
Position - - -- 25,000 - 17,121,339 17,146,339
Off-Balance Sheet Shert
Position -- - - (25,000) - (17,083,787) (17,108,787)
Total Position (3,896,601) {358,062) 292,384 5,414,837 4,856 (1,419,862) 37,552

(*) Non-interest bearing column includes TL 4,897 associations, TL 5,445 subsidiaries, TL 186,188 tangible assets, TL 3,842 intangible assets,
TL 8,580 tax asset, TL. 16,382 assets held for sale and TL 78,333 other assets,

(**) Non-interest bearing column includes TL 1,410,343 shareholders’ equity, TL 101,698 other liabilitics, TL 453 finance lease liabilities, TL
178,458 provisions and TL 35,279 tax liabilities
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Explanations on interest rate risk (cont’d)

Interest rate sensitivity of assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet items (Based on repricing dates):

Non-

Uptol 1-3 3-12 1-5 Over interest
Prior Period End Month Months Months Years 5 Years Bearing Total
Assets
Cash (Cash in TL, Cash in
Foreign Currency, Cash in
Transit, Cheques Purchased) and
Balances with the Central Bank
of Turkey 1,352,802 - - - . 585,132 1,937,934
Banks 33,815 -- - -- -- 24,249 58,064
Financial Assets at Fair Value
Through Profit or Loss 21,971 1,174 1,014 1,194 2,905 469,427 497,685
Interbank Money Market
Placements 274,702 - - -- - - 274,702
Financial Assets Available -for-
Sale - 293 24,940 751,929 109,044 1,020 887,226
Loans 1,869,120 3,805,040 1,991,266 2,772,280 875,097 128,469 11,441,272
Investment Securities Held-to-
Maturity - - - - - - -
Other Assets (*) - - -- -- -- 296,626 296,626
Total Assets 3,552,410 3,806,507 2,017,220 3,525,403 987,046 1,504,923 15,393,509
Liabilities
Bank Deposits 347,019 20,072 -- -- -- 114,714 481,805
Other Deposits 5,589,025 2,136,045 894,494 17,244 -- 502,290 9,139,698
Interbank Money Market
Received 517,259 166,569 - - -- = 683,828
Sundry Creditors - -- -- - - 145,749 145,749
Marketable Securities Issued 183,558 424,661 383,736 -- -- - 991,975
Funds Borrowed from Other
Financial Institutions 56,928 903,970 609,851 2,534 - - 1,573,283
Other Liabilities (**) - 8,737 - -- 351,920 2,016,514 2,377,171
Total Liabilities 6,693,789 3,660,054 1,888,101 19,778 351,920 2,779,867 15,393,509
Balance Sheet Long Position - 146,453 129,119 3,505,625 635,126 e 4,416,323
Balance Sheet Short Position (3,141,379) - - -- - (1,274,944) (4,416,323)
Off-Balance Sheet Long Position - - - 25,000 - 9921939 9,946,939
Off-Balance Sheet Short Position . a -- (25,000} -- (9,874,479) (9,899,479)
Total Position (3,141,379) 146,453 129,119 3,505,625 635,126 (1,227,484) 47,460

(*) Non-interest bearing column includes TL 5,445 subsidiaries, TL 186,199 tangible assets, TL 3,979 intangible assets, TL 3 tax assets, TL
3,817 assets held for sale and TL 97,183 other assets.
(**) Non-interest bearing column includes TL 1,289,866 shareholders’ equity, TL 126,110 other liabilities, TL 85 finance lease [iabilities, TL
178,569 provisions and TL 38,424 tax liabilities,
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Explanations on interest rate risk (cont’d)

Average interest rates applied to financial instruments

. EUR USD JPY TL

Current Period End % % 2 o
Assets
Cash (Cash in TL, Cash in Foreign Currency, Cash
in Transit, Chegues Purchased) and Balances with
the Central Bank of Turkey - 1.25 - 6.41
Banks u- 1.40 -- 12.25
Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profi/ Loss 2.00 528 -- 13.15
Interbank Money Market Placements - -- -- 13.07
Financial Assets Available-for-Sale 3.43 4.44 - 9.57
Loans 6.06 6.56 - 16.66
Investment Securities Held-to-Maturity -- - - --
Liabilities
Bank Deposits -- 1.56 -- 10.10
Other Depaosits 1.88 76 - 13.81
Interbank Money Market Funds 0.29 2.25 - -
Sundry Creditors - -- - --
Marketable Securities Issued - 7.75 - 13.80
Funds Borrowed from Other Financial Institutions 1.79 272 - 6.60

. . EUR UsDh JPY TL
Prior Period End % % a %
Assets
Cash (Cash in TL, Cash in Foreign Currency, Cash
in Transit, Cheques Purchased) and Balances with
the Central Bank of Turkey -- 0.75 - 3.31
Banks 0.03 0.55 - --
Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit/Loss 3.19 4.69 -- 10.67
Interbank Money Market Placements 0.01 - - 10.40
Financial Assets Available-for-Sale 343 4.51 -- 9.40
Loans 5.97 6.23 - 15.23
Investment Securitics Held-to-Maturity - - - -
Liabilities
Bank Deposits = 0.84 - 9.06
Other Deposits 1.60 3.46 - 11.40
Interbank Money Market Funds 0.53 227 - 8.00
Sundry Creditors - - -- -
Marketable Securities Issued -- 9.25 - 10.77
Funds Borrowed from Other Financial Institutions 1.89 2,33 - 6.55
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Explanations on equity share position risk
As of 30 September 2017, there is no equity share position (31 December 2016: None).

Explanations on liquidity risk and liquidity coverage ratio

The Board of Directors reviews the liquidity and funding risk management policy once a year or in case
of necessity. Liquidity risk is managed by Asset and Liability Committee (ALCO) through risk
management policy with the perspective of short and long term liquidity risk.

Liquidity strategies are weekly determined by the Bank within the scope of ALCO meetings where
funding needs and funds are discussed. Treasury department manages cash flows in line with strategies
determined. As deemed necessary by the ALCO members, liquidity meetings are performed for the
purposes of close monitoring. While Treasury Department manages short term liquidity, ALCO strategy
considers legal ratios and stress tests.

Bank’s TL/FC balance is monitored weekly and decision of actions are determined based on ALCO
decisions. The funding balance is directly monitored and compensated by making the risk-return-cost
evaluation.

"Maturity Mismatch Report" is prepared on a weekly basis for long term liquidity risk and it is included
in ALCO presentation. The Bank, resulting from the general structure of Turkish banking sector, has a
liquidity gap at the 2 years maturity period. The Bank intends to eliminate liquidity mismatch by shifting
focus to long-term funding alternatives. Such protection decisions of the risk of incompatibility are taken
by ALCO. The Bank diversifies its funding sources among customer deposits, domestic and foreign
borrowings, bills and bonds issued; considers the maturity match between its assets and liabilities and
keeps liquid assets in order to fully meet the liquidity requirements that may emerge in case of market
volatility.

Information on the use of stress testing

Department of Risk Management implements stress testing on a weekly basis according to Liquidity and
Funding Risk Policy approved by the Board of Directors. These stress tests are based on the scenarios
that deposit and funds obtained from issued bonds will outflow and Bank’s limits will not be used in a
14-day period, and the results are presented in ALCO meetings on a weekly basis and in Risk Committee
meetings on a monthly basis. In this way, the Bank's funding structure is closely monitored and necessary
actions are taken.

Alternative funding sources are identified in case of need. ALCO members are responsible for short-
term liquidity shocks to take actions. In the case of a crisis or if deemed necessary, ALCO summon a
meeting and take possible action plans immediately. These action plans are approved by the Board of
Directors under the ISEDES. The Bank reviews resources that are available in any emergency situation
constantly and takes into consideration the results of the above-mentioned stress testing and scenario
analysis by the early warning system.

According to BRSA’s “Legislation on Measurement and Assessment of Liquidity Adequacy of the
Banks”; published in the Official Gazette numbered 28948, dated 21 March 2014; liquidity ratio is
required to be 60% for foreign currency assets/liabilities and 80% for total assets/liabilities in the
calculation of the banks’ weekly and monthly reporting effective from 1 January 2017.
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Explanations on liquidity risk and liquidity coverage ratio (cont’d)

(*) The average of last three months’ liquidity coverage ratio calculated by weekly simple averages.

39

C ¢ Period Total Unweighted Value (¥) Total Weighted Value (¥)
urrent Terio TLAFC FC TL+FC FC
HIGH-QUALITY LIQUID ASSETS
1 | Total high-quality liquid assets (HQLA) 2,435,157 1,909,434
CASH OUTFLOWS
2 | Deposits from natural persons and retail deposits 6,364,516 2,731,221 611,386 273,018
3 Stable deposits 493,959 -- 30,106 2,558
4 Less stable deposits 5,870,557 2,731,221 581,281 270,461
Unsecured funding except for retail deposits and
deposits from natural persons, of which: 4,363,239 2,373,245 2,342,807 1,238,688
Operational deposits - -- -- --
7 Non-operational deposits 2,856,181 1,440,593 1,131,388 571,839
8 Other unsecured funding 1,507,058 932,652 1,211,419 666,849
9 | Secured funding 440,030 440,030
10 | Other cash outflows 1,901,714 746,124 388,325 237,507
Outflows related to derivative exposures and
11 other collateral requirements 225,298 191,724 225,741 190,657
Outflows related to restructured financial
12 instruments -- - - -
Payment commitments granted for debts to
financial markets and other off-balance sheet
13 commitments 1,676,416 554,400 162,583 46,851
Other revocable off-balance sheet commitments
14 | and other contractual obligations -- - 17,951 7,409
Other irrevocable or conditionally revocable off-
15 | balance sheet obligations 18,141 28
16 | TOTAL CASH OUTFLOWS 3,818,641 2,196,682
CASH INFLOWS
17 | Secured receivables 56,497 56,497 55,993 55,993
18 | Unsecured receivables 2,052,703 544,223 1,347,005 464,443
19 | Other cash inflows 47,394 22,110 47,591 22,551
20 | TOTAL CASH INFLOWS 2,156,595 622,830 1,450,589 542,987
21 | TOTAL HQLA 2,435,157 1,909,434
22 | TOTAL NET CASH QUTFLOWS 2,353,299 1,636,193
23 | LIQUIDITY COVERAGE RATIO (%) 103.48 116.70
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Explanations on liquidity risk and liquidity coverage ratio (cont’d)

. . Total Unweighted Value (*) Total Weighted Value (*)
Prior Period TL+EC FC TL+FC FC
HIGH-QUALITY LIQUID ASSETS

1 | Total high-quality liguid assets (HQLA) 1,612,419 1,500,173
CASH QUTFLOWS
2 | Deposits from natural persons and retail deposits 5,695,464 2,273,281 358,551 137,961
3 Stable deposits 4,219,902 1,787,343 210,995 89,367
4 Less stable deposits 1,475,563 485,938 147,556 48,594
Unsecured funding except for retail deposits and
deposits from natural persons, of which: 3,101,718 1,610,573 1,781,409 982,506
Operational deposits -- - - -
7 Non-operational deposits 2,154,050 1,001,207 861,620 400,483
8 Other unsecured funding 947,668 609,366 916,788 582,023
9 | Secured funding 389,631 389,631
10 | Other cash outflows 1,364,540 818,505 261,554 180,209
Outflows related to derivative exposures and
11 other collateral requirgments 128,841 402,536 128,840 123,387
Outflows related to restructured financial
12 instruments - -- - -
Payment commitments granted for debts to
financial markets and other off-balance sheet
13 commitments 1,235,699 415,969 132,714 56,822
Other revocable off-balance sheet cornmitments
14 | and other contractual obligations - -- - --
Other irrevocable or conditionally revocable off-
15 | balance sheet obligations 20,807 27 20,546 27
16 | TOTAL CASH OUTFLOWS 2,811,690 1,690,334
CASH INFLOWS
17 | Secured receivables 41,014 40,870 40,080 40,080
18 | Unsecured receivables 1,547,281 283,953 963,460 236,017
19 | Other cash inflows 34,203 28,492 34,202 28,491
20 | TOTAL CASH INFLOWS 1,622,497 353,315 1,037,742 304,589
21 | TOTAL HQLA 1,612,419 1,500,173
22 | TOTAL NET CASH OUTFLOWS 1,773,948 1,385,745
23 | LIQUIDITY COVERAGE RATIO (%) 90.89 108.26

(*) The average of last three months’ liquidity coverage ratio calculated by weekly simple averages.
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Explanations on liquidity risk and liquidity coverage ratio (cont’d)

The table below presents highest, lowest and average liquidity coverage ratios for the last three months
of the period 1 January — 30 September 2017 :

Current Period Highest Date Lowest Date Average
TLAFC 1290.81% 18.08.2017 81.55% 09.08.2017 103.30%
FC 207.73% 31.07.2017 85.00% 19.07.2017 116.43%
Prior Period Highest Date Lowest Date Average
TL+FC 129.68% 25.10.2016 72.00% 23.11.2016 92.16%
FC 170.08% 07.12.2016 74.04% 15.11.2016 113.52%

The Bank implements the calculation in accordance with the Regulation of Liquidity Coverage Ratio
Calculation of Banks dated 21 March 2014 and numbered 28948 published in the Official Gazette. The
related regulations include items that are considered as high quality liquid assets; mainly the securities
portfolio and cash assets and money held as required reserves. The important factors affecting the results
of the liquidity coverage ratio are remaining maturities of 30 days exchange and money market
transactions. Deposits form a significant portion of the Bank's sources of funds, on the other hand bonds
issued, money market borrowings, funds provided from abroad are other important sources of funding.

The Bank calculates cash flow and margin likely to transactions arising from derivative transactions in
accordance with the Regulation on Banks' Liquidity Coverage Ratio dated 21 March 2014 and numbered
28948 published in Official Gazette as taking 24-month average into account .
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VI Explanations on liquidity risk and liquidity coverage ratio (cont’d)
Presentation of assets and liabilities according to their remaining maturities:
Up to 1-3 3-12 1-5 5Years
Current Period End Demand 1 Month Months Months Year and Over Unallocated Total
Assets
Cash (Cash in TL, Cash in Foreign
Currency, Cash in Transit, Cheques
Purchased) and Balances with the
Central Bank of Turkey 424,894 1,875427 - - - - - 2,300,321
Banks 34,322 290,297 - - - - - 324,619
Financial Assets at Fair Value Through
Profit or Loss - 75,469 40,800 49,242 373,444 3,672 - 542,627
Interbank Money Market Placements - 103,675 - - - - -- 103,675
Financial Assets Available-for-Sale 1,539 - 9,085 94,702 632,929 96,421 - 834,726
Loans - 2,198,149 1,797,773 4,933,067 4,719,569 414,343 197,501 14,260,402
Investment Securities Held-to-Maturity - - - - - - - -
Other Assets (*) - -~ -- - - - 303,674 303,674
Total Assets 460,805 4,543,017 1,847,658 5,077,011 5,725,942 514,436 501,175 18,670,044
Liabilities
Bank Deposits [16,696 517,234 56,692 4,135 - -- - 694,757
Other Deposits 713,558 6,638,886 2,880,258 731,160 26,630 - - 10,996,492
Funds Borrowed from Other Financial
Institutions - 34,492 636,066 719,663 377,604 59,927 -- 1,827,752
Interbank Money Market Received - 386,755 106,329 -- - - - 493,084
Marketable Securities Issued - 326475 207,995 688,797 - - - 1,223,267
Sundry Creditors - 113,309 - - - - - 113,309
Other Liabilities (¥¥) - 109,243 63,965 74,272 410,683 1,066,191 1,597,029 3,321,383
Total Liabilities 830,254 8,126,394 3,957,305 2,218,027 814917 1,126,118 1,597,029 18,670,044
Net Liquidity Surplus/{(Gap) (369,449)  (3,583,377) (2,100,647) 2,858,984 4,911,025 (611,682)  (1,095,854) -
Net Off-Balance Sheet Position “ 14,298 (4,013) 6,076 5,314 - ~ 21,675
Derivative Financial Assets - 4,149,350 3,639,150 3,558,757 4,584,633 11,044 -~ 15,942,934
Derivative Financial Liabilities ~ 4135052 3,643,163 3,552,681 4,579,319 11,044 -~ 15,921,259
Non-Cash Loans - 69,079 213,373 581,193 145206 326,785 - 1335636
Prior Period
Total Assets 373,581 3,690,006 1,575,068 4,420,080 4,322,835 586,844 425,095 15,393,509
Total Liabilities 617,604 6955286 2,929,037 2,137,078 851,775 432,119 1,469,610 13,393,509
Net Liquidity Gap (244,023) (3,265280) (1,353,969) 2,283,002 3,470,060 154,725 (1,044,515} --
Net Off-Balance Sheet Position - 15,785 (3,025) 19,021 16,005 - - 47,786
Derivative Financial Assets ~ 2,622,167 1018933 2,321,449 3,776,784 - ~ 9,739,333
Derivative Financial Liabilities - 2,606,382 1,021,958 2,302,428 3,760,779 - - 9,691,547
Non-Cash Loans - 49,172 158,169 321,197 95,139 273,349 . 897,026

(*) Certain assets on the balance sheet that are necessary for the banking operations but not convertible into cash in the short term such as tangible

assets and prepaid expenses are included in this column.
(**) Shareholders' equity and provisions are classified in other liabilities in unallocated column.
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Explanations on liquidity risk and liquidity coverage ratio (cont’d)

The table of leverage level calculated in accordance with the Regulation on Assessment and Calculation
of Banks’ Leverage Level published in the Official Gazette numbered 28812 and dated 5 November
2013 is shown below;

Current Prior
On - balance sheet assets Period(*) Period(*)
On-balance sheet items (excluding derivative financial instruments and
1 | credit derivatives but including collateral) 19,041,920 15,533,937
2 | (Assets deducted in determining Tier I capital) (24,710) {34,286)
3 | Total on-balance sheet risks (sum of lines 1 and 2) 19,017,210 15,499,651
Derivative financial instruments and credit derivatives
Replacement cost associated with all derivative financial instruments and
4 | credit derivatives 478,915 331,031
Potential credit risk associated with all derivative financial instruments
3 | and credit derivatives 292,872 185,286
Total risks of derivative financial instruments and credit derivatives (sum
6 | oflines 4 to 5) 771,787 516,317
Securities or commodity financing transactions {(SCFT)
7 | Risks from SCFT assets (except for on-balance sheet) 673,778 811,748

Risks from brokerage activities related exposures - -

Total risks related with securities or commodity financing transactions
9 | (sum of lines 7 to &) 673,778 811,748

QOther off-balance sheet fransactions

10 | Gross notional amounts of off-balance sheet transactions 3,208,376 2,193,861

11 | (Adjustments for conversion te credit equivalent amounts) -- --

12 | Total risks of off-balance sheet items (sum of lines 10 and 11) 3,208,376 2,193,861
Capital and total risks --

13 | Tier I capital 1,384,357 1,265,803

14 | Total risks (sum of lines 3, 6,9 and 12) 23,671,151 19,021,577

Leverage ratio

15 | Leverage ratio 5.86 6.67

(*) Represents three-month average amounts.
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Explanations on segment reporting

The Bank operates in customer banking services, individual customer current accounts, deposit accounts,
long term investment products, clearing and custody services, credit and atm services, retail loans, long
term mortgage loans, and all other kinds of customer banking services and commercial services.

Commercial &

Retail Corporate Treasury &  Total Operations
Banking Banking Headquarters of the Bank
Current Period
1 January — 30 September 2017
Operating Income 214,653 316,348 (4,744) 526,257
Operating Profit (21,055) 214,897 (56,038) 137,804
Taxation (27,713
Net Profit/(Loss) for the Period 110,091
Current Period - 30 September 2017
Segment Assets 4,018,062 10,044,839 4,607,143 18,670,044
Total Assets 18,670,044
Segment Liabilities 6,972,866 4,023,627 6,263,208 17,259,701
Shareholders’ Equity 1,410,343
Tatal Liabilities 18,670,044
Commercial &
Retail Corporate Treasury &  Total Operations
Banking Banking Headquarters of the Bank
Prior Period
1 January — 30 September 2016
Operating Income 184,196 224,716 48,094 457,006
Operating Profit 16,111 135,539 (36,820) 114,830
Taxation (32,539
Net Profit/(Loss) for the Period 82,291
Prior Period - 31 December 2016
Segment Assets 3,338,361 7,974,405 4,080,743 15,393,509
Total Assets 15,393,509
Segment Liabilities 6,543,963 2,595,736 4,963,944 14,103,643
Shareholders’ Equity 1,289,866
Total Liabilities 15,393,509
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SECTION FIVE

EXPLANATIONS AND NOTES ON THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Explanations and disclosures related to the assets

Information on cash z;nd balances with the Central Bank of Turkey

Current Period Prior Period
TL FC TL FC
Cash in TL /Foreign Currency 26,638 76476 28,535 49972
Balances with the Central Bank of Turkey 142,727 2,054 480 109,442 1,749,985
Other - -- -- -
Total 169,365 2,130,956 137,977 1,799,957

Information related to the account of the Central Bank of Turkey

Current Period Prior Period
TL FC TL FC
Unrestricted Demand Deposits 65,479 256,301 109,442 160,363
Unrestricted Time Deposits 77,248 - -- 25,969
Restricted Time Deposits - 1,798,179 -- 1,563,653
Total 142,727 2,054,480 109,442 1,749,985

According to the communiqué Numbered 2005/1 on “Reserve Deposits” of CBRT, banks operating in
Turkey are required to keep reserve deposit at the rates varying from 4% - 10.50% for TL liabilities
depending on maturities of liabilities and at the rate 4% - 24% and denominated mainly in EUR and USD
for FC liabilities. According to the Central Bank of Turkey’s press announcement Numbered 2014-72
dated 21 October 2014, the Reserve Deposits as from November of 2014 are paid interest on the portion
held in Turkish Lira and press announcement Numbered 2015-35 dated 2 May 2015 the Reserve
Deposits as from May of 2015 are paid interest on the portion held in USD.

Information on financial assets at fair valuze through profit or loss

Information on financial assels ai fair value through profit and loss given as collateral or blocked

Current Period Prior Period
TL FC TL FC
Share Certificates - - - -
Bonds, Treasury Bills and Similar Marketable
Securities 17,540 - 7,055 -
Other — -- -- “
Total 17,540 -- 7,055 -

Trading securities given as collateral represent those collaterals given to the Central Bank of Turkey,
and Istanbul Settlement and Custody Bank Inc. for interbank money market, foreign exchange market
and other transactions, as of balance sheets dates.
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Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss subject to repurchase agreements

Current Period Prior Period

TL FC TL FC
Share Certificates -- -- - -
Bonds, Treasury Bills and Similar Marketable Securities - -- 9,581 --
Total -- -- 9,581 --

Positive differences relating to derivative financial assets held-for-trading

Current Period

Prior Period

TL FC TL FC
Forward Transactions 44,846 -- 15,877 -
Swap Transactions 319,598 - 272,383 --
Futures Transactions -- - - -
Opticns 106,512 8,069 126,479 265
Other - -- - --
Total 470,956 8,069 414,739 265
Information on Banks
Information on banks
Current Period Prior Period
TL FC TL FC
Banks
Domestic 226,843 63,943 514 33,815
Foreign 851 32,982 598 23,137
Foreign head-offices and branches - - -- -
Total 227,694 96,925 1,112 56,952

Due from foreign banks

Not prepared in compliance with the Article 25 of the communique “Financial Statements and Related
Disclosures and Footnotes to be Announced to Public by Banks”.

Information on financial assets available~for-sale

Financial assets available-for-sale subject to repurchase agreements and provided as

collateral/blocked
Current Period Prior Period

TL FC TL FC
Share Certificates - - - --
Bonds, Treasury Bills and Similar Marketable
Securities 169,244 611,102 169,880 681,568
Other - - -- --
Total 169,244 611,102 169,880 681,568
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Details of financial assets available-for-sale

Current Period

Prior Period

Debt instruments 843,158 902,795
Quoted on Stock Exchange 843,158 902,795
Unquoted on Stock Exchange - -

Share certificates 1,590 1,018
Quoted on Stock Exchange 1,590 1,019
Unquoted on Stock Exchange -- --

Impairment provision {-) 10,022 16,588

Total 834,726 887,226

Information on loans

Information on all types of loans and advances given to shareholders and employees of the Bank

Current Period

Prior Period

Cash Non-Cash Cash Non-Cash
Direct Loans to Shareholders - - -- -
Corporate Shareholders - - -- e
Individual Shareholders - - - -
Indirect Loans to Shareholders - -- - -
Loans to Employees 4,020 - 3,630 -
Total 4,020 -- 3,630 -

Information on the first and second group loans and other receivables including restructured or

rescheduled loans
Standard Loans and Other Loans and Other Receivables under
Receivables Close Monitoring
Iaaans and Loan and Receivables Loans and Loan and Receivables
ther g . Other . \
. with Revised Contract . with Revised Contract
Cash Loans Receivables Terms Receivables Terms
(Toial) (Toial)
Extension of Extension of
Repayment | Other Repayment | Other
Plan Plan
Loans 13,077,592 15,093 - 985,309 456,583 104,863
Working Capital Loans -- - - -- -- -
Export Loans 281,501 - - 13,219 12,686 -
Import Loans -- -- - - - --
Loans to Financial Sector 691,674 - - 1,451 63 -
Consumer Loans 523,694 8 - 60,659 5,503 1,831
Credit Cards 102,292 - - 11,899 - -
Others 11,478,431 15,085 - 898,081 438329 103,032
Specialization Loans -- -- - -- - --
Other Receivables - - -- -~ -- -
Total 13,077,592 15,093 - 985,309 456,583 104,863
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Information on the first and second group loans and other receivables including restructured or

rescheduled loans (cont’d)

| Current Period

Prior Period

Standard Loans  Loans and Other
and Other Receivables under
Receivables Close Monitoring

Standard Loans Loans and Other
and Other Receivables under
Receivables Close Monitoring

Number of Extensions 15,093 456,583 9,356 474,112

1 or 2 times 15,003 449,973 9,356 470,413

3, 4 or 5 times - 6,610 - 3,699

Over 5 times " ~ -- -
Current Period Prior Period

Standard Loans  Loans and Other
and Other Receivables under
Receivables Close Monitoring

Standard Loans Loans and Other
and Other Receivables under
Receivables Close Monitoring

Extension Periods 15,093 456,583 9,356 474,112
0-6 months 972 41,106 2,012 32,121
6 -12 months - 28,718 843 38,737
1 -2 years 979 98,508 470 124,864
25 years 6,893 152,474 4,095 168,291
5 years and over 6,249 135,777 1,936 110,099
The overdue analysis of close monitoring loans
Current Period Commercial Loans Consumer Loans Total
1-30 days 156,996 7,708 164,704
31-60 days 88,818 19,852 108,670
61-90 days 152,629 15,358 167,987
Total 398,443 42,918 441,361
Prior Period Commenrcial Loans Consumer Loans Total
1-30 days 141,691 5,493 147,184
31-60 days 63,683 19,468 83,151
61-90 days 173,908 12,202 186,110
Total 379,282 37,163 416,445

Maturity analysis of cash loans

Not prepared in compliance with the Article 25 of the communique “Financial Statements and Related

Disclosures and Footnotes to be Announced to Public by Banks™.
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Information on consumer loans, individual credit cards and credit cards given to personnel

Medium or Long

Short-Term Term Total
Consumer Loans-TL 16,306 504,984 521,290
Real Estate Loans 138 300,871 301,009
Vehicle Loans -- 5,303 5,303
General Purpose Loans 16,168 198,810 214,978
Other -- -- -
Consumer Loans-Indexed to FC - 51,339 51,339
Real Estate Loans - 50,004 50,004
Vehicle Loans - - -
General Purpose Loans -- 1,335 1,335
Other - - -
Consumer Loans-FC - 1,111 1,111
Real Estate Loans - 1,111 1,111
Vehicle Loans - - -
General Purpose Loans - - -
Other - - -
Individual Credit Cards-TL 6,078 - 6,078
With Installment 933 - a33
Without Installment 5,145 - 5,145
Individual Credit Cards-FC 24 - 24
With Installment - - -
Without Installment 24 - 24
Loans Given to Employees-TL 331 2,668 2,999
Real Estate Loans - 58 58
Vehicle Loans -- - -
General Purpose Loans 331 2,610 2,941
Other - - -
Loans Given to Employees - Indexed to FC - - -
Real Estate Loans - - -
Vehicle Loans - - -
General Purpose Loans -- - -
Other - - -
Loans Given to Employees - FC - - -
Real Estate Loans - - -
Vehicle Loans - -- -
General Purpose Loans -- - -
Other - - -
Personnel Credit Cards - TL 1,019 - 1,019
With Installment 320 - 320
Without Installment 699 - 699
Personnel Credit Cards - FC 2 - 2
With Installment - - -
Without Installment 2 - 2
Overdraft Loans-TL (Real Persons) 7,614 - 7,614
Overdraft Loans-FC (Real Persons) - - -
Total 31,374 560,102 591,476
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Information on commercial loans with installments and corporate credit cards

Medium or Long
Short Term Term Total
Installment Commercial Loans — TL 824,138 3,733,824 4,557,962
Real Estate Loans - 5,750 5,750
Vehicle Loans 2,751 61475 64,226
General Purpose Loans 821,387 3,606,599 4,487,986
Other - - -
Installment Commercial Loans — Indexed to FC 7,520 179,178 186,698
Real Estate Loans - 429 429
Vehicle Loans - 15,560 15,560
General Purpose Loans 7,520 163,189 170,709
Other - - -
Installment Commercial Loans - FC - - .
Real Estate Loans - — -
Vehicle Loans - - -
General Purpose Loans - - -
Other - - -
Corporate Credit Cards - TL 107,018 - 107,018
With Installment 22,006 -- 22,096
Without Installment 84,922 - 84,922
Corporate Credit Cards - FC 50 -- 50
With Installment - -- -
Without Installment 50 - 50
Overdraft Loans-TL (Corporates) 77,167 - 77,167
Overdraft Loans-FC (Corporates) - - -
Total 1,015,893 3,913,002 4,928,395
Allocation of loans by customers
Current Period Prior Period
Public Sector - -
Private Sector 14,062,901 11,312,803
Total 14,062,901 11,312,803 -
Allocation of domestic and foreign loans
Current Period Prior Period
Domestic Loans 13,681,262 10,938,052
Foreign Loans 381,639 374,751
Total 14,062,901 11,312,803

Loans granted to subsidiaries and associates

The Bank does not have any loans granted to subsidiaries and associates as of 30 September 2017 (31

December 2016: None).
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5.8 Specific provisions for loans
Specific Provisions Current Period Prior Period
Loans and Receivables with Limited Collectability 10,215 9,430
Loans and Receivables with Doubtful Collectability 43,932 23,399
Uncollectible Loans and Receivables 117,619 51,341
Total 171,766 84,170
5.9 Information on non-performing loans (Net)
5.9.1 Information on loans and other receivables included in non-performing loans which are restructured
or rescheduled
Group IIT Group IV Group V
Loans and Loans and
receivables receivables with Uncollectible
with limited doubtful loans and
collectability collectability receivables
Current Period 38 216 38
(Gross Amounts before Specific Provisions) -- - -
Restructured Loans and Other Receivables 38 216 38
Rescheduled Loans and Other Receivables - - -
Prior Period -- -- 88
(Gross Amounts before Specific Provisions)
Restructured Loans and Other Receivables -- - 88
Rescheduled Loans and Other Receivables - - -
59.2 Movement on non-performing loans
Group III Group IV Group V
Loans and Loans and
receivables receivables with Uncollectible
with limited doubtful loans and
collectability collectability receivables
Balances at Beginning of Period 71,154 62,682 78,803
Additions (+) 228,397 2,736 1,784
Transfers from Other Categories of Non-Performing Loans (+) - 201,099 122,362
Transfers to Other Categories of Non-Performing Loans (-} 201,105 122,355 --
Collections (-) 26,403 11,294 11,186
Write-offs (-)(*) -- 7,540 19,867
Corporate and Commercial Loans - 7,148 14,186
Retail Loans - 26 3,786
Credit Cards - 366 1,895
Other - - -
Balances at End of the Period 72,043 125,328 171,896
Specific Provisions (-) 10,215 43,932 117,619
Net Balance on Balance Sheet 61,828 81,396 54,277

() TL 27,407 of loans were sold and transferred to asset management company and written off in June 2017,

51



593

594

FIBABANKA A.S.

NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE PERIOD OF 1 JANUARY - 30 SEPTEMBER 2017

(Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (TL) unless otherwise stated.)

Information on non-performing loans and other receivables in foreign currencies

Group ITI Group IV Group V
Loans and Loans and
receivables with receivables with Uncollectible
limited doubtful loans and
collectability collectability receivables
Current Period
Balance as of the Period End 3,282 11,060 28,537
Specific Provisions (-) 164 5479 11,306
Net Balance on Balance Sheet 3,118 5,581 17,231
Prior Period
Balance as of the Period End 348 4,057 24,401
Specific Provisions (-) 70 2,029 7,352
Net Balance on Balance Sheet 278 2,028 17,049

Information regarding gross and net amounts of non-performing loans with respect to user groups

Group III Group IV Group V

Loans and Loans and
receivables with  receivables with Uncoliectible
limited doubtful loans and
collectability collectability receivables
Current Period (Net) 61,828 81,396 54,277
Loans Granted to Real Persons and Corporates (Gross) 72,043 125,328 171,896
Specific provisions (-) 10,2135 43,932 117,619
Loans Granted to Real Persons and Corporates (Net) 61,828 81,396 54,277
Banks (Gross) - - -
Specific Provisions (~) -~ -- -
Banks (Net) - - --
Other Loan and Receivables (Gross) -- - -
Specific Provisions (-) -- -- --
Other Loan and Receivables (Net) - - --
Prior Period (Net) 61,724 39,283 27462
Loans Granted to Real Persons and Corporates (Gross) 71,154 62,682 78,803
Specific provisions (-) 9,430 23,399 51,341
Loans Granted to Real Persons and Corporates (Net) 61,724 39,283 27462

Banks (Gross)
Specific Provisions (-)

Banks (Net)

Other Loan and Receivables (Gross}
Specific Provisions (-)

Other Loan and Receivables (Net)
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Liguidation policy for uncollectible loans and other receivables

The Bank allocates [00% provision for uncollectible loans. If the Bank has collateral, non-performing
loans and other receivables are collected through both executive and legal attempts, as soon as possible
by liquidation of these collaterals. In the absence of collateral, the Bank performs periodical market
intelligence and tries to determine the assets acquired subsequently by the debtor and applies to the legal
follow-up process.

Explanations related to write-off policy

In case of all necessary conditions based on the relevant regulation occur, all impaired loans are written-
off by the Board of Directors’ decision.

Information on held-to-maturity investments
The Bank has no held-to-maturity investments as of 30 September 2017.

Information on associates

The Bank has TL 4,897 investment in an associate as of 30 September 2017 (31 December 2016: None).

Bank’s share- If
Subsidary Address (City / different voting Bank’s risk group
Country) rights (%) share (%)
Kredi Garanti Fonu A.S. Ankara 1.54% 1.54%

Information on subsidiaries

The Bank has TL 5,445 investment in a subsidiary as of 30 September 2017 (31 December 2016: TL
5,445).

Bank’s share— If s s
. . Bank’s risk
. different voting
Address (City / rights (%) group share | Consolidation
Subsidiary Country) £ (%) Method
. e i ; Full
Fiba Portfdy Yonetimi A.S. Istanbul 99.0% 99.0% Consolidation
Current
Income on | Period Prior

Sharcholders’ | Total Fixed | Interest | Securities | Profit/ Period | Company’s

Total Assets Equity Assets (*) Income Portfolio Loss | Profit/Loss | Fair Value
5,708 5,454 3 479 - 113 23 5,454

(*)Total fixed assets consist of tangible and intangible assets.
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Information on subsidiaries (cont’d)

Movement of consolidated investment in subsidiary

Current Period | Prior Period
Balance at Beginning of the Period 5,445 5445
Movements during the Period
Additions and Capital Increases -- --
Bonus Shares Received - --
Dividends from the Current Year Profit - --
Sales/Liquidations -- --
Reclassification of shares - -
Increase / (Decrease) in Market Values - -
Currency Differences on Foreign Subsidiaries -- --
Reversal of Impairment Loses/ Impairment Losses (-) --
Balance at the End of the Period 5,445

Capital Commitments -- -
Share of Percentage at the End of the Period (%) 99 99

Fiba Portféy Yonetimi A.S. was established on 26 September 2013 with 99% participation of Fibabanka A.S.

Sectoral distribution of consolidated investments in subsidiary

Current Period | Prior Period
Banks -- -
Insurance Companies - -
Factoring Companies -- -
Leasing Companies - -
Finance Companies - -
Other Subsidiaries 5,445 5,445

Quoted consolidated investments in subsidiary

None.
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Information on entities under common control
The Bank has no joint ventures as of 30 September 2017.
Information on lease receivables

The Bank has no leasing receivables as of 30 September 2017.
Information on derivative financial assets held for hedging purposes
The fair value hedge accounting has been ceased by the Bank as of 30 September 2017 as it became

ineffective. The cumulative fair value difference on the carrying value of the hedged loans amounting to
TL 3,804 will be reflected to the income statement over the life of the hedged loans.

Information on tangible assets

Not prepared in compliance with the Article 25 of the communique “Financial Statements and Related
Disclosures and Footnotes to be Announced to Public by Banks”.

Information on intangible assets

Not prepared in compliance with the Article 25 of the communique “Financial Statements and Related
Disclosures and Footnotes to be Announced to Public by Banks”.

Information on investment properties

None.
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Information on deferred tax asset

Amount of deferred tax asset recognized in the balance sheet in respect of deductible temporary
differences, unused tax losses and unused tax credits

As of 30 September 2017, the deferred tax asset amounting to TL 8,577 is calculated by netting of
deductible temporary differences and taxable temporary differences (31 December 2016: TL 1,374
deferred tax liability).

Deferred tax consists of deferred tax asset and liability items recognized on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases which are used in the computation of taxable profit. The deferred tax assets and liabilities are
presented as net in the accompanying financial statements.

Current Period

Deferred Tax Asset/
Deferred Tax Base (Liability)
Financial Assets Valuation 10,967 2,193
Unearned Commission Income/Prepaid Commission
Expenses 20,183 4,037
Retirement Pay and Unused Vacation Provision 17,168 3,434
Tangible Assets Base Differences (3,738) (748)
Other (1,697) (339)
Deferred Tax Asset/(Liability) 42,883 8,577
Prior Period
Deferred Tax Asset/
Deferred Tax Base {Liability)
Financial Assets Valuation (25,566) (5,113)
Unearned Commission Income/ Prepaid Commission Expenses 1,559 312
Retirement Pay and Unused Vacation Provision 17,743 3,549
Tangible Assets Base Differences (3,357) (671)
Other 2,744 549
Deferred Tax Asset/(Liability) 6,877) (1,374)
The movement of the current year and prior year deferred tax assets is shown below:
1 January - 1 January —
30 September 2017 31 December 2016
Deferred Tax Asset, 1 January (1,374) 1,653
Deferred Tax Income / (Expense) 12,548 (5,801
Deferred Tax Recognized Directly Under Equity (2,597) 2,773
Deferred Tax Asset/(Liability), at the End of the Period 8,577 (1,374)

As of 30 September 2017, the Bank has no carry forward tax losses.
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Amount and expiry date of deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses, unused tax credits for
which no deferred tax asset is recognized in prior periods in the balance sheet

None.

Deferred tax asset resulting from the cancellation of the provision for impairment losses related to the
deferred taxes

None.

Information on assets held for sale and non-current assets related to discontinued operations

As of 30 September 2017, the Bank has TL 16,389 assets held for sale (31 December 2016: TL 3,817).

Information on other assets
Other assets do not exceed 10% of total assets excluding the off-balance sheet items.

Information on prepaid expenses, tax and similar items
As of 30 September 2017, total prepaid expenses are TL 29,921 (31 December 2016: TL 24,074).
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11. Explanations and disclosures related to the liabilities

1. Information on deposits

11 Information on maturity structure of deposits

Current Period
7DayCall Uptol 1-3 3-6 6 Months 1 Year Cumulative
Demand Accounts Month Months Months -1 Year and Over Deposit Total

Saving Deposits 68,549 - 429,749 2,178,585 344,569 174,865 96,298 - 3,292,615
Foreign Currency
Deposits 329,230 - 433938 3441274 166,082 47573 129,321 - 4,547418

Residents in Turkey 314,266 - 401,285 3,422,951 165,211 46,256 45,511 -- 4,395,480

Residents Abroad 14,964 -- 32,653 18,323 871 1,317 83,810 -- 151,938
Public Sector Deposits 45,956 - - - - - = - 45,956
Commercial Deposits 259,534 -~ 85324 1865364 121,026 221,243 418,087 - 2970578
Other Ins. Deposits 2,559 -- 8067 82,662 39,783 6,305 79 -- 132,195
Precious Metal Deposits 7,730 - -- - -- - - - 7,730
Interbank Deposits 116,696 - 484,647 85,976 7,438 - - - 694,757

Central Bank of Turkey - -- 116,070 - -- - - - 116,070

Domestic Banks 4,146 - 366,831 53,388 7.438 - - -- 431,803

Foreign Banks 25,580 - 1,746 32,588 - - - - 39,914

Special Finan.Inst. 86,970 -- - - - -- - -- 86,970

Other - - -- - - - - - -
Total 830,254 - 1434465 7,653,861 678,898 449,986 643,785 - 11,691,249

Prior Period
7 Day Call Uptol 1-3 36 6 Months 1 Year Cumulative
Demand Accounts Month Months Months -1 Year and Over Deposit Total

Saving Deposits 56,397 - 482,578 2,032,327 325,157 354,068 95,077 - 3,345,604
Foreign Currency
Deposits 265,625 - 920,370 2,599,456 252,024 126,933 95,198 - 3,429,606

Residents in Turkey 257,644 - 85,315 2,588,713 247,014 121,569 14,544 - 3,314,799

Residents Abroad 7,981 -- 5,055 10,743 5,010 5,364 80,654 -- 114,807
Public Sector Deposits 1 - -- 10 - - - " 11
Commercial Deposits 172,450 -- 311,657 1,218,969 169,463 175,757 220,118 -- 2,268,354
Other Ins. Deposits 1,505 - 1,522 55,280 18,590 12,299 15 -- 89,211
Precious Metal Deposits 6,912 - - - - - - - 6,912
Interbank Deposits 114,714 -- 332,421 34,670 - - - - 481,805

Central Bank of Turkey - - - - - - - - .

Domestic Banks 12 - 314,090 20,072 -- - - -- 334,174

Foreign Banks 17,263 - 18,331 14,598 e - - -- 50,192

Special Finan.Inst. 97,439 - - - - . . _ 97,439

Other - - - - - - - - -
Total 617,604 -- 1,218,548 5,940,712 765,174 669,057 410,408 -- 9,621,503
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Information on saving deposits under the guarantee of saving deposit insurance and exceeding the

limit of saving deposit insurance:

Under the Guarantee Exceeding the limit
of Deposit of Deposit
Insurance Insurance
Current Period  Prior Period | Current Period Prior Period

Saving Deposits 1,158,426 937,362 2,114,820 2,380,080
Foreign Currency Saving Deposits 309,698 188,315 2,279,719 2,163,704
Other Deposits in the Form of
Saving Deposits - -- -
Foreign Branches’ Deposits Under Insurance of
Foreign Authorities - - -
Off-shore Banking Regions’ Deposits Under
Foreign Authorities' Insurance - - --
Total 1,468,124 1,125,677 4,394,539 4,543,784

Saving deposits in Turkey are not covered by any insurance in any other countries since the Bank’s

headquarter is not located abroad.

Saving deposits that are not under the guarantee of deposit insurance fund

Current Period Prior Period
Deposits and Accounts in Branches Abroad -- -
Deposits of Ultimate Shareholders and Their Close Families 38,292 47,498
Deposits of Chairman and Members of the Board of Directors and
Their Close Families 13,388 8,032

Deposits Obtained through Illegal Acts Defined in the 282nd Article
of the 5237 Numbered Turkish Criminal Code dated 26 September
2004.

Saving Deposits in Banks Established in Turkey Exclusively for Off
Shore Banking Activities

Information on derivative financial liabilities held for trading

Information on negative differences relating to derivative financial liabilities held for trading

Current Period

Prior Period

Trading Purpose Derivative Financial Liabilities TL FC TL FC
Forward Transactions 35826 - 16,986 -
Swap Transactions 375,221 -- 239,985 -
Futures Transactions -- . - --
Options 108,853 8,068 126,226 262
Other -- - -- -
Total 519,900 8,068 383,197 262

Information on banks and other financial institutions

Information on banks and other financial institutions

Current Period

Prior Period

TL FC TL FC
Loans from Central Bank of Turkey - - - -
From Domestic Banks and Institutions 18,571 72,688 17,220 63,573
From Foreign Banks, Institutions and Fands - 1,700,392 -- 1,453,870
Total 18,571 1,773,080 17,220 1,519,443
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Maturity analysis of borrowings

Current Period Prior Period
TL FC TL FC
Short-Term 17,662 206,926 17,220 45,031
Medium and Long Term 909 1,566,154 - 1,474,412
Total 18,571 1,773,080 17,220 1,519,443

Additional explanation related to the concentrations of the Bank’s major liabilities:

In the scope of normal banking operations, the Bank funds itself through funds provided by deposits,

money market funds, bank borrowings and bond/bill issuance.

Informations related with issued instruments

Current Period TL FC
Short-Term I\'i:‘admm and Short-Term Medium and
ong Term Long Term
Nominal 1,264,520 -- - -
Book Value 1,223,267 -- - -
Prior Period TL FC
Short-Term Medium and Short-Term Medium and
Long Term Long Term
Nominal 1,015,580 - - -
Book Value 991,975 - - --

Sundry creditors and other liabilities

Sundry creditors and other liabilities lines of the balance sheets do not exceed 10% of the total liabilities.

Criteria used in the determination of lease installments in the finance lease contracts, renewal and
purchase options, restrictions, and significant burdens imposed on the bank on such contracts

Detailed information about changes in agreements and further commitments arising

None,

Obligations under financial leases

Current Period Prior Period
Gross Net Gross Net
Less than 1 Year . 135 111 89 85
Between 1-4 Years 377 342 -- --
More than 4 Years - -- -- --
Total 512 453 89 85
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Information on operational leases and footnotes

The Bank has operational lease agreements for some of its bank branches. If the rental payments are .
made in advance, the paid amount is accounted under prepaid expenses in “Other Assets”, in the
following months, the rental expenses belonging to those months are recorded in profit/loss accounts.

The Bank does not incur any liability as a result of any changes in operational lease agreements. The

Bank does not have any obligation from operational lease agreements.

Information on “Sale-and-lease back” agreements

None.

Information on derivative financial liabilities for hedging purposes
None.

Information on provisions

Information on general provisions

Current Period

Prior Period

Loans and Receivables in Group 1 86,314 95,988

- Additional Provision for Loan and Receivables with Extended Maturities - -
Loans and Receivables in Group 2 16,988 18,047

- Additional Provision for Loan and Receivables with Extended Maturities - "
Non-Cash Loans 10,233 7,252
Others -
Total 113,535 121,287

Foreign exchange losses on the foreign currency indexed loans and finance lease receivables

The foreign exchange losses on the foreign currency indexed loans as of 30 September 2017, amounting
to TL 25 are netted off from the loans on the balance sheet(31 December 2016: TL 920).

The specific provisions provided for unindemnified non cash loans

As of 30 September 2017, the specific provision provided for unindemnified non cash loans is TL 1,889
(31 December 2016: TL 1,311).

Explanation on other provisions

Provisions for probable losses

Current Period Prior Period

Provisions for probable losses 42,000 36,000

The breakdown of the subsidiary accounts if other provisions exceed 10% of the grand total provisions
None.
Explanations on reserves for employee benefits

As of 30 September 2017, reserves for employee benefits amounting to TL 17,173 (31 December 2016:
TL 16,894) comprise of TL 9,665 reserve for employee termination benefits (31 December 2016: TL
8,265), TL2,247 unused vacation pay liability (31 December 2016: TL 2,683) and TL 5,261 personnel
premium accrual (31 December 2016: TL 5,946).
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Explanations on tax liabilities
Explanations on current tax liability

Explanations on tax provision

As of 30 September 2017, the Bank’s current tax liability is TL 35,279 (31 December 2016: TL 37,050),
after netting the prepaid taxes, the remaining amount of Corporate Tax is TL 4,842 (31 December 2016:

TL 6,714).

Information on faxes payable

Current Period

Prior Period

Corporate taxes payable 4,842 6,714
Taxation on securities 10,993 11,912
Property tax 385 391
Banking and Insurance Transaction Tax (BITT) 11,754 9,228
Taxes on foreign exchange transactions -- -
Value added taxes payable 100 186
Income tax ceased from wages 3,194 2,640
Other 357 349
Total 31,625 31,420
Information on premiums

Current Period Prior Period
Social Security Premiums- Employee 1,559 2,426
Social Security Premiums- Employer 1,773 2,70
Bank Social Aid Pension Fund Premium- Employee - -
Bank Social Aid Pension Fund Premium- Employer - -
Pension Fund Membership Fees and Provisions- Employee -- --
Pension Fund Membership Fees and Provisions- Employer -- --
Unemployment Insurance- Employee 108 167
Unemployment Insurance- Employer 214 336
Other - -
Total 3,654 5,630

Explanations on deferred tax liabilities
None (31 December 2016:TL 1,374).

Information on liabilities regarding assets held for sale and discontinued operations

None.
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Explanations on subordinated loans

Current Period Prior Period
TL FC TL FC
Domestic Banks -- - - -
Domestic Other Institutions - - - 360,657
Foreign Banks - 36.101 - 36,621
Foreign Other Institutions - 1,067,184 - -
Total - 1,103,285 - 397,278
Information on shareholders’ equity
Paid-in capital
Current Period Prior Period
Common Stock 941,161 941,161

Preferred Stock — -

Paid-in capital amount, explanation as to whether the registered share capital system is applied at the
bank; if so the amount of registered share capital ceiling:

Registered share capital system is not applied.

Information on share capital increases and their sources; other information on increased capital
shares in current period

None.
Information on share capital increases from revaluation funds
None.

Information on capital commitments the purpose and the sources unftil the end of the fiscal year and
the subsequent interim period:

The capital is totally paid in and there are no capital commitments.

Indicators of the Bank’s income, profitability and liguidity for the prior periods and possible effects
of these future assumptions due to the uncertainty of these indicators on the Bank’s equity:

None.

Information on privileges given to stocks representing the capital

The Bank does not have any preferred shares.
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Information on shareholders’ equity (cont’d)

Common stock issue premiums, shares and equity instruments

Number of shares issued with premiums and the related share premiums are presented below.

Current Period

Prior Period

Number of Shares (Thousand) 26,230,098
Number of Privileged Shares -
128,678
Share Cancellation Profits -

Share Premium

Other Equity Instruments -

26,230,098

128,678

Information on marketable securities value increase fund

Current Period

Prior Period

TL FC

TL FC

From Subsidiaries, Associates, and Entities Under Common
Control (Joint Ventures) - -

Security Valuation Difference (8,576) (1,292)

Exchange Difference - -

(10,151) (10,103)

Total (8,576) (1,292)

(10,151) (10,103)

Information on revaluation reserve

None.

Bonus shares of Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Ventures
None.

Information on legal reserves

Current Period

Prior Period

Primary Legal Reserves 13,535
Secondary Legal Reserve -

Other Legal Reserves Per Special Legislation -

7,790

Information on extraordinary reserves

Current Period

Prior Period

Reserves allocated by the General Assembly 229,749
Retained Earnings -
Accumulated Losses -

Foreign Currency Capital Exchange Difference -

120,579

Information on minority shares

None.
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Explanations and disclosures related to the off-balance sheet contingencies and commitments

Information on off-balance sheet commitments

Nature and amount of irrevocable loan commitments

Current Period Prior Period
Asset Sale and Purchase Commitments 2,350,933 415,538
Credit Card Limit Commitments 124,111 101,475
Commitments for Credit Cards and Banking Services Promotions 1 1
Commitments for Credit Allocation with the Guarantee of Usage 282,144 171,368
Export Commitments 4,370 4,230
Commitment for Cheques 206,038 172,800
Other Irrevocable Commitments 2,816 3,016
Total 3,010,413 868,428

Possible losses and commitments related to off-balance sheet items, including the ones listed below

Non-cash loans including guarantees, acceptances, financial guarantee and other letters of credits

Current Period

Prior Period

Letters of Guarantee TL 612,058 439,122
Letters of Guarantee FC 246,705 166,786
Letters of Credit 267,518 224,067
Bills of Exchange and Acceptances 209,355 67,051
Total 1,335,636 897,026

Revocable, irrevocable guarantees and other similar commitments and contingencies

Current Period

Prior Period

Revocable Letiers of Guarantee 52,439 34,534
Irrevocable Letters of Guarantee 695,735 497,262
Letters of Guarantee Given in Advance 62,193 47,7127
Letters of Guarantee Given to Customs 12,907 14,741
Other Letters of Guarantee 35,489 11,644
Total 858,763 605,908
Total amount of non-cash loans
Current Period Prior Period
Non-Cash Loans Given against Cash Loans 23,680 5,503
With Original Maturity of 1 Year or Less Than 1 Year 2,279 -
With Original Maturity of More Than 1 Year 21,401 5,503
Other Non-Cash Loans 1,311,956 891,523
Total 1,335,636 897,026
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Information on sectoral risk concentrations of non-cash loans

Not prepared in compliance with the Article 25 of the communique “Financial Statements and Related
Disclosures and Footnotes to be Announced to Public by Banks”.

Information on the first and second group of non-cash loans

Not prepared in compliance with the Article 25 of the communique “Financial Statements and Related
Disclosures and Footnotes to be Announced to Public by Banks”.

Information related to derivative financial instruments

Not prepared in compliance with the Article 25 of the communique “Financial Statements and Related
Disclosures and Footnotes to be Announced to Public by Banks”.

Credit derivatives and risk exposures on credit derivatives

None.

Explanations on contingent liabilities and assets

As of balance sheet date, the Bank provided provision of TL 1,083 for the legal cases pending against
the Bank where the cash out flows are highly probable (31 December 2016; TL 1,055).

Custodian and intermediary services

The Bank provides trading and safe keeping services in the name and account of third parties to meet
their demands and those transactions are presented in off-balance sheet.
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Explanations and disclosures related to the income statement

Interest income

Information on interest on loans (¥)

Current Period

Prior Period

TL FC TL FC
Interest on loans 1,017,072 188,259 756,845 137,925
Short Term Loans 558,552 17,593 480,630 17,220
Medium and Long Term Loans 458,520 170,666 276,215 120,696
Interest on Non-Performing Loans 1,943 - 2,663 ="
Premiums received from Resource Utilization Support Fund - - - -
Total 1,019,015 188,259 759,508 137,925
{*) Includes fees and commissions obtained from cash loans.
Information on interest income received from banks
Current Period Prior Period
TL FC TL FC
The Central Bank of Turkey 22,610 - - 3
Domestic Banks 32,546 416 4,685 220
Foreign Banks - 238 -- 102
Branches and Head Office Abroad - - -- -
Total 55,156 654 4,685 325
Interest received from marketable securities portfolio
Current Period Prior Period
TL FC TL FC
Financial Assets Held for Trading 1,189 166 880 140
Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss . N _— _
Financial Assets Available-for-Sale 12,480 23,990 5,476 15,252
Investment Securities Held-to-Maturity - -- - -
Total 13,669 24,156 6,356 15,392

Information on interest income received from associates and subsidiaries

None.
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Interest expense

Informnation on interest on funds borrowed (%)

Current Period

Prior Period

TL FC TL FC

Banks §53 22,618 759 17,971
The Central Bank of Turkey - =" . -
Domestic Banks 845 3,799 759 2,354
Foreign Banks 8 18,819 - 15,617
Branches and Head Office Abroad - - - —
Other Institutions - 58,398 - 25706
Total 853 81,016 759 43,677

(™ Includes also the fee and commission expsnses on borrowings.

Information on interest expenses to associates and subsidiaries

In the current period, total interest expense given to subsidiaries is TL 449 (1 Janvary — 30 September

2016: TL 424)

Information on interest expenses to securities issued

Current Period Prior Period
TL FC TL ¥C
Interest Paid to Securities Issued 100,707 -- 61,335 -
Distribution of interest expense on deposits based on maturity of deposits
Time Deposits
Account Description Demand Uptol Upto3 Upto6 Uptol 1Year Cumulative Total
Deposits Month Months Months  Year and Over Deposit

Turkish Lira
Bank Deposits - 6,586 - -- -- -- -- 6,586
Saving Deposits - 35482 204,466 29,726 25204 8,099 - 302977
Public Sector Deposits -- -- - -- -- -- - --
Commercial Deposits — 14,485 140,722 22,546 30,207 27,137 - 235,007
Other - 490 8,556 1,648 946 3 -- 11,643
7 Day Call Accounts - - - - - - - -
Total .. 57,043 353,744 53920 56,357 35,239 -~ 536,303
Foreign Currency
Foreign Currency Deposits -- 8,171 79,679 4,244 2,059 2,926 -- 97,079
Bank Deposits - 5,603 - - -- - - 5,603
7 Day Call Accounts - - - - - - - --
Precious Metal Deposits -- -- - -- - -- - -
Total - 13,774 79,679 4,244 2,059 2,926 -~ 102,682
Grand Total - 70,817 433,423 58,164 58,416 38,165 - 658,985

Information on dividend income

None,
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Information on net trading income / loss

Current Period Prior Period
Income 1,234,919 785,847
Gains on Capital Market Operations . 5,685 6,363
Gains on Derivative Financial Instruments 628,794 393,098
Foreign Exchange Gains 600,440 386,386
Loss (-) 1,239,380 759,091
Losses on Capital Market Operations 1,547 605
Losses on Derivative Financial Instruments 631,851 368,596
Foreign Exchange Losses 605,982 389,890
Net Trading Income / { Loss ) (4,461) 26,756

Information on other operating income

Other operating income consists of reversal of general and specific provisions, profit from sale of assets,

commissions on cheques and notes and costs recharged.

Impairment on loans and other receivables

Current Period Prior Period
Specific Provisions on Loans and Other Receivables: 118,702 78,680
IIL Group Loans and Receivables 4,170 4,003
IV. Group Loans and Receivables 23,133 20,920
V. Group Loans and Receivables 91,399 53,757
General Loan Loss Provisions - 29,734
Free Provision for Probable Risks 6,000 13,500
Impairment Losses on Securities: - -
Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss - --
Financial Assets Available-for-Sale - --
Impairment Losses on Associates, Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and
Investment Securities Held to Maturity: - --
Associates - --
Subsidiaries - -
Joint Ventures - --
Investinents Held to Maturity -- -
Other -- “
Total 124,702 121,914
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Information related to other operational expenses

Current Period

Prior Period

Personnel Expenses 146,517 110,235
Provision for Employee Termination Benefits 1,400 1,350
Provision for Bank’s Social Aid Fund Deficit -- -
Impairment Losses on Tangible Assets -~ --
Depreciation Charges of Tangible Assets 9,434 9,155
Impairment Losses on Intangible Assets - -
Amortization Charges of Intangible Assets 2,217 2,847
Impairment Losses on Investment Accounted for under Equity Method - -
Impairment of Assets to be Disposed -- -
Depreciation of Assets to be Disposed 55 18
Impairment of Assets Held for Sale -- --
Other Operating Expenses 65,870 60,048
Operational Leases Expenses 26,041 21810
Repair and Maintenance Expenses 1,583 1,169
Advertisement Expenses 7,878 7.128
Other Expenses 30,368 29,9471
Losses on Sale of Assets 292 14
Other 37,966 36,595
Total 263,751 220,262 |

Information on profit/loss before tax from continued and discontinued operations

Not prepared in compliance with the Article 25 of the communique “Financial Statements and Related

Disclosures and Footnotes to be Anncunced to Public by Banks”.

70



FIBABANKA A.S.
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9. Information on tax provision from continued and discontinued operations
9.1 Current period taxation benefit or charge and deferred tax benefit or charge

For the period ended 30 September 2017, current period taxation charge of the Bank is TL 40,261 (1
January — 30 September 2016 TL 33,483 tax charge) and deferred tax benefit of the Bank is TL 12,548
(1 January — 30 September 2016 deferred tax benefit is TL 944).

Current Prior
Period Period
Deferred Tax Benefit/ (Charge) 12,548 944
Allowance for Deferred Taxes -- s
Net Deferred Tax Charge 12,548 944
9.2 Deferred tax benefit / (charge) arising from origination or reversal of temporary differences
Deferred tax benefit / (charge) arising from origination or reversal of temporary Current Prior
differences Period Period
Arising from Origination of Deductible Temporary Differences (+) 13,439 1,784
Arising from Reversal of Deductible Temporary Differences (-} (547) (1,453
Arising from Origination of Taxable Temporary Differences (-) (2,662) (1,623)
Arising from Reversal of Taxable Temporary Differences (+) 2,318 2,236
Arising from Origination of Financial Losses (+) - -
Arising from Reversal of Financial Losses (-} - -
Arising from Origination of Tax Deductions and Exemptions (+} -- -
Arising from Reversal of Tax Deductions and Exemptions (-) -- —
Total 12,548 944
Allowance - --
Net deferred tax benefit / (charge) 12,548 944
9.3 Deferred tax benefit / (charge) arising from temporary differences, tax losses or unused tax credits
Current Prior
Sources of deferred tax benefit/charge Period Period
Arising from Origination (+)/ Reversal (-) of Deductible Temporary Differences 12,892 331
Arising from Origination (-)/ Reversal (+) of Taxable Temporary Differences (344) 613
Arising from Origination (+)/ Reversal (-) of Tax Losses - -
Arising from Qrigination (+)/ Reversal (-) of Unused Tax Credits - -
Total 12,548 944
Allowance -- -
Net deferred tax benefit / (charge) 12,548 944
10. Information on profit/loss from continued and discontinued operations

Not prepared in compliance with the Article 25 of the communique “Financial Statements and Related
Disclosures and Footnotes to be Announced to Public by Banks”.
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Information on net profit/loss for the period

The nature and amount of certain income and expense items from ordinary operations is disclosed if
the disclosure for nature, amount and repetition rate of such items is required for the complete
understanding of the Bank's performance for the period

In the current and prior periods, the Bank's income from ordinary banking transactions is interest income
from loans and marketable securities and other banking service income. Main expenses are interest
expense on deposits and similar debt items which are funding resources of loans and marketable
securities.

Changes in estimations made by the Bank with respect to the financial statement items do not have a
material effect on profit/loss.

As there is no minority share in shareholders’ equity, there is no profit or loss attributable to the
minority shares.

If “other” lines of the income statement exceeds 10% of the period profit/loss, information on
components making up at least 20% of “other” items

In the income statement, “other” items recognised under “fees and commissions received” is comprised
of allocation and revise of limit commissions, valuation commissions, insurance commissions,
contracted merchant commissions, credit card commissions and account and account maintenance fee
etc,

In the income statement, “other” items recognised under “fees and commissions paid” is majorly
comprised of commissions to correspondent banks, credit card commissions and commissions on
issuance of securities.
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Explanations and disclosures on the risk group of the Bank

Information on the volume of transactions with the Bank’s risk group, lending and deposits
outstanding at period end and income and expenses in the current period

Current Period
Other Real Persons and
Associates and Bank’s Direct and Corporates
s Ri *

Bank’s Risk Group (*) Subsidiaries Indirect Shareholders in Risk Group

Cash Non-Cash Cash  Non-Cash Cash Non-Cash
Loans and Other Receivables (**)
Balance at the Beginning of the Period -- -- -- 22 126,939 30,871
Balance at the End of the Period - -- -- 22 6,520 46,708
Interest and Commission Income
Received -- - -- -- 3,429 67

(*) Described in article 49 of the Banking Act No: 5411.
(**} Includes all iransactions accepted as loans in article 48 of the Banking Act No: 5411.

Prior Period
Other Real Persons and
Associates and Bank’s Direct and Corporates
i ¥

Bank’s Risk Group (*) Subsidiaries Indirect Shareholders in Risk Group

Cash Non-Cash Cash Non-Cash Cash Non-Cash
Loans and QOther Receivables(*¥)
Balance at the Beginning of the Period - -- - 20 5,720 17,242
Balance at the End of the Period - -- - 22 126,939 30,871
Interest and Commission Income
Received -- -- - - 441 230

(*) Described in article 49 of the Banking Act No: 5411.
(**) Includes all transactions accepted as loans in article 48 of the Banking Act No: 5411

Information on deposits of the Bank’s risk group

Other Real Persons and

Associates and Bank’s Direct and Corporates
Bank’s Risk Group (*) Subsidiaries Indirect Shareholders in Risk Group
Current Prior Current Prior Current Prior
Period Period Peried Period Period Pericd
Deposits
Balance at the Beginning of the Period 4,767 4,761 15,552 89,173 505,022 496,534
Balance at the End of the Period 4,875 4167 138,247 15,552 532,704 595,922
Deposit Interest Expense 449 424 17,151 7,956 31,776 23,651

{*) Described in article 49 of the Banking Act No: 5411.
Information on funds obtained from Bank’s risk group

As of 30 September 2017, the amount of funds obtained from other real persons and corporates in Bank’s
risk group is TL 150,160 and provided from IFC and EBRD in the form of borrowings (31 December
2016: TL 523,313; TL 162,656 is from IFC and EBRD in the form of borrowings and TL 360,657 is
from Fiba Holding A.S. through the issuance of subordinated bonds).
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Information on forward and option agreements and similar agreements made with Bank’s risk group

Other Real Persons
Associates and Bank's Direct and and Corporates
Bank’s Risk Group (¥ Subsidiaries Indirect Shareholders in Risk Group
Current Prior Current Prior Current Prior
Period Period Period Period Period Period
Financial Assets at Fair Value Through
Profit and Loss:
Balance at the Beginning of the Period - - - -- 863,016 344,668
Balance at the End of the Period - -- - -~ 775,824 863,016
Total Income/Loss - - -- - (20,535 (4,741)

Transactions for Hedging Purposes:
Balance at the Beginning of the Period - - - - - -
Balance at the End of the Period - - - - - -
Total Income/Loss - ~- - - - -

{(*) As described in the Article 49 of Banking Act numbered 541].
Information on transactions with the Bank’s risk group

Relations with entities in the risk group of / or controlled by the Bank regardless of the nature of
relationship among the parties

Transactions with the risk group are made on arms-length basis; terms are set according to the market
conditons and in compliance with the Banking Law.Adopted Bank policy is that assets and liabilities
will not be dominated by the risk group and the balances with the risk group will have a reasonable share
in the total balance sheet.

In addition to the structure of the relationship, type of transaction, amount, and share in fotal
fransaction volume, amount of significant items, and share in all items, pricing policy and other

As of 30 September 2017, the ratio of the loans and other receivables used by the entities of risk group
to total loans and receivables is 0.04% (31 December 2016: 1.10%), and the ratio of the deposits of
entities of risk group to total deposits is 5.78% (31 December 2016: 6.40%). The ratio of the borrowings
from real persons and corporates in the Bank’s risk group to total borrowings is 5.2% (31 December
2016: 27.1%). Disporsion of 5.2% is; 5% IFC and 0.2% EBRD.

In current period benefits provided to the key management is TL 11,787 (1 January — 30 September
2016: TL 7,051).

Total of similar type of transactions together, unless a separate disclosure is required to present the
effect of the transactions on financial statements

None.

Transactions accounted for under equity method

None.

Explanations on purchase and sale of real estate and other assets, sales and purchases of services,
agency contracts, finance lease agreements, transfer of data obtained from research and development,
licensing agreements, financing (including loans and cash and in-kind capital support), guarantees
and promissory notes, and management contracts

None.
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VI Explanations on the Bank’s domestic, foreign, off-shore branches or investments in associates
and foreign representative offices

1. Information related to the Bank’s domestic and foreign branch and representatives
Number Number of
Employees
Domestic Branch 80 1,692
Country of Incorporations
Foreign
Representation 1-
Office
2.
3
Statutory
Total Assets Share Capital
Foreign Branch 1-
2-
3-
Off-shore
Banking Region 1-
Branches
2.
3-

VII. Events after balance sheet date

None.

VIII. Other disclosures on activities of the Bank

Summary information of Bank’s risk ratings by international rating agencies

Long term FC and TL BB-
Short term FC and TL B
Financial Capacity BB-
Support 5
Long term National Scale Rating A+ (tur)
Outlook Stable
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SECTION SIX

EXPLANATIONS ON AUDITORS’ LIMITED REVIEW REPORT

Explanations on the auditors’ limited review report

The Bank’s publicly available financial statements and footnotes have been reviewed by Giiney
Bagimsiz Denetim ve Serbest Muhasebeci Mali Miisavirlik A.S. (Member of Ernst&Young Global

Limited) and the auditors’ limited review report is presented before the financial statements.

Other footnotes and explanations prepared by the independent auditors

None.

76



FIBABANKA A.S.

NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD OF 1 JANUARY - 30 SEPTEMBER 2017

(Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (TL) unless otherwise stated.}

SECTION SEVEN

Interim activity report regarding evaluations of the chairman of the board of directors and the
general manager

Brief History of Fibabanka A.S. and its Shareholder Structure

On 21 December 2001, Share Transfer Agreement was signed with Novabank S.A. for the sale of all
shares of Sitebank A.S. under the control of SDIF and the sale transaction was approved by the decision
of Banking Regulation and Supervision Agency No: 596 on 16 January 2002.

In the General Assembly held on 4 March 2003, the name of Sitebank A.S. was amended as BankEuropa
Bankas1 A.S.

In the extraordinary General Assembly held on 28 November 2006, the name of BankEuropa Bankasi
A.S. was amended as Millennium Bank A.$. On 10 Febrary 2010, Banco Comercial Portugues S.A.
and Credit Europe Bank N.V., which is an affiliate of Fiba Group, signed a share purchase agreement to
transfer 95% of the Parent Bank’s shares to Credit Europe Bank N.V. and the legal approval process has
been completed as of 27 Decemnber 2010. In the extraordinary General Assembly held on 25 April 2011
the name of Millennium Bank A_$. has been amended as Fibabanka A.S. (“the Bank™).

Fiba Holding A.$. became the ultimate parent of the Bank after acquiring 97.6% of the shares from
Credit Europe Bank N.V. on 3 December 2012 and 2.4% of the shares from Banco Comercial Portugues
S.A. on 7 December 2012.

In 2013, capital was increased in the total amount of TL 123,350, provided from inflation adjustment
difference TL 17,415, from the profit from the sale of real estate TL 9,502 and cash from Fiba Holding
TL 96,432.

On 31 March 2015, according to BOD’s decision as of 5 March 2015, share capital was increased from
TL 550,000 to TL 678,860 while TL 127,045 of the increase was provided by the subordinated loan
granted by Fiba Holding A.S. which had been approved to be converted to capital and TL 1,815 of total
capital was paid in cash by the other shareholders, capital increase was recognised in financial statements
following the completion of the legal procedures on 7 May 2015.

According to the Subscription Agreement signed on the date of 23 October 2015, by and between the
Bank and International Finance Corporation ("IFC") and European Bank for Reconstruction and
Development ("EBRD"), IFC and EBRD have separately subscribed an amount of including the share
premium TL 121,017 (TL 84,328 of said amount is the share of capital; TL 36,689 is the share premium),
which makes a total amount of TL 242,034, in the share capital of the Bank by way of capital increase.

The Bank’s paid-in capital of TL 847,515 was increased by TL 93,646 on 7 September 2016 all by
TurkFinance B.V. to reach TL 941,161. In addition, TL 55,299 was recorded to equities as share

premium.
As of 30 September 2017, the Bank’s paid-in capital is TL 941,161.
As of 30 September 2017, The Bank’s Shareholder Structure:

Commercial Title Sharigs?;o;ﬁ (Full Share Ratios (%)
Fiba Holding A.S. 673,147,386.04 71.52%
Turk Finance B.V. 93,645,475.05 9.95%
International Finance Corporation 84,327,750.28 8.96%
European Bank for Reconstruction and Development 84,327,750.28 8,96%
Other 5,712,191.60 0.61%
TOTAL 941,160,553.25 100.00%
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Chairman and the Members of the Board of Directors, Statutory Auditors, General Manager
and Assistant General Managers, Members of the Audit , and Managers of the Departments
within the scope of Internal Systems

Name Dut Responsibility Date of Educational Professional
¥ Area Appointment Status Experience
R e Chairman of the
Hiisnii Mustafa Ozyegin Board of Directors 27.12.2010 Graduate 42 years
Vice Chairman of
Fevzi Bozer the Board of 27.12.2010 Graduate 34 years
Directors
: Member of the
Ismet Kaya Erdem Board of Directors 11.02.2013 Undergraduate 66 years
e Member of the
Mehmet Giilesci Board of Directors 27.12.2010 Graduate 33 years
. . Member of the
Mevliit Hamdi Aydin Board of Directors 24.01.2013 Undergraduate 34 years
Member of the
Memduh Aslan Akcay Board of Directors 13.04.2016 Graduate 26 years
= Member of the
Selguk Yorgancioglu Board of Directors 22,09.2016 Graduate 25 years
Member of the
Hiilya Kefeli Board of Directors 15.05.2017 Undergraduate 32 years
. Member of the
Omer Mert Board of Directors, 19.01.2017 Graduate 22 years
General Manager
EIlif Alsev Utku Ozbey Deputy General Financial C'ontrol 07.01.2011 Graduate 23 years
Manager and Reporting
Assistant General Information
Adem Aykin Manager Technologies 01.07.2011 Undergraduate 29 years
Esra Osmanagaoglu Assistant General  Banking 29.022012  Undergraduate 29 years
Manager Operations
Ahu Dolu QISS‘S‘E‘“‘ General - Financial 01122015  Undergraduate 20 years
anager Institutions
Turgay Hasdiker ﬁssnstam General Credits 01.12.2015 Undergraduate 26 years
anager
Assistant General Corporate and
Kerim Lokman Kurig M Commercial 01.12,.2015 Undergraduate 19 years
anager Banki
anking
: ADC and
. Assistant General
Orhan Hatipoglu M Supporting 02.01.2017 Undergraduate 25 years
anager s
Services
Omer Rifat Gencal Assistant General Treasury 02.02.2015 Undergraduate 25 years
Manager
Consurner
Sezin Erken Assistant General Bank}ng and 10.08.2017 Graduate 16 years
Manager Funding Resource
Management
Gergek Onal Chief Legal Legal Affairs 01.022016  Graduate 17 years
Counsel
Ahmet Cemil Borucn Department Head  Board of 07.022011  Graduate 19 years
Inspection
Ayse Tulgar Ayca Department Head Risk Management  15.03.2011 Undergraduate 18 years
Serdal Yoidrmm Department Head ~ LeBislationand 45649017 Graduate 20 years
Compliance
Internal Control &
Kansu Pulular Department Head Operational Risk 02.01.2017 Graduate 13 years
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Brief Financial Information Relating to Results of Activities During the Period

|

Unconsolidated Balance Sheet Summary

(Thousands TL) 30/09/17 31/12/16 Increase/
Decrease %
Cash and Balances with the Central Bank 2,300,321 1,937,934 19%
Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit or 9%
Loss (Net) 542,627 497,685
Due from Banks 324,619 58,064 >100%
Financial Assets Available for Sale (Net) 834,726 887,226 (6%)
Loans to Customers (Net) 14,260,402 11,441,272 25%
Total Assets 18,670,044 15,393,509 21%
Deposits 11,691,249 9,621,503 22%
Derivative Financial Liabilities Held for Trading 527,968 383,459 38%
Funds Borrowed 1,791,651 1,536,663 17%
Money Market Funds 493,084 683,828 (28%)
Securities Issued (Net) 1,223,267 991,975 23%
Subordinated Debts 1,103,285 397,278 >100%
Sharcholder’s Equity 1,410,343 1,289,866 9%
Total Liabilities 18,670,044 15,393,509 21%
| Consolidated Balance Sheet Summary
(Thousands TL) 30/09/17 31/12/16 _ Increase/
- — Decrease %
Cash and Balances with the Central Bank 2,300,321 1,937,934 19%
Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit or 9%
Loss (Net) 542,627 497,685
Due from Banks 324,933 58,380 >100%
Financial Assets Available for Sale (Net) 834,726 887,226 (6%)
Loans to Customers (Net) 14,260,402 11,441,272 25%
Total Assets 18,665,429 15,388,872 21%
Deposits 11,686,372 9,616,738 22%
Derivative Financial Liabilities Held for Trading 527,968 383,459 38%
Funds Borrowed 1,791,651 1,536,663 17%
Money Market Funds 493,084 683,828 (28%)
Securities Issued (Net) 1,223,267 991,975 23%
Subordinated Debts 1,103,285 397,278 >100%
Shareholder’s Equity 1,410,351 1,289,761 9%
Total Liabilities 18,665,429 15,388,872 21%
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Brief Financial Information Relating to Results of Activities During the Period (cont’d)

| Unconsolidated Income Statement Summary

(Thousands TL) 30/09/2017 30/09/2016 _ l1nmcrease/
Decrease %
Net Interest Income 465,883 372,145 25%
Net Fees and Commission Income 31,836 19,343 65%
Trading Income/ Loss (Net) (4,461) 26,756 (117%)
Other Operating Revenues 32,999 38,762 {15%)
Total Operating Income 526,257 457,006 15%
Provision for Losses and Other Receivables (-) 124,702 121,914 2%
Other Operating Expenses (-) 263,751 220,262 20%
Net Operating Income / Loss 137,804 114,830 20%
Profit/Loss on Continuing Operations Before 20%
Tax 137,804 114,830
Tax Provision for Continuing Operations (27,713) (32,539) (15%)
Net Period Profit / Loss 110,091 82,291 34%
| Consolidated Income Statement Summary —I
(Thousands TL) 30/09/2017  30/09/201¢ _ Increase/
Decrease %
Net Interest Income 466,359 372,588 25%
Net Fees and Commission Income 33,052 20,219 03%
Trading Income/ Loss (Net) (4,461) 26,771 (117%)
Other Operating Income 32,851 38,623 (15%)
Total Operating Income 527,801 458,201 15%
Provision for Losses and Other Receivables (-) 124,702 121,914 2%
Other Operating Expenses (-) 265,153 221,428 20%
Net Operating Income / Loss 137,946 114,859 20%
Profit/Loss on Continuing Operations Before 20%
Tax 137,946 114,859
Tax Provision for Continuing Operations (27,742) (32,545) {15%)
Net Period Profit / Loss 110,204 82,314 34%
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Evaluations of the Chairman of the Board of Directors and the General Manager Regarding the
Interim Period

As of first nine-month of 2017, Fibabanka has increased its loan portfolio by 39% compared to the same
period of year 2016 and the loan portfolio has increased 25% by reaching TL 14.3 billion compared to
the end of 2016. Growth was achieved especially in corporate, commercial and SME loans, performing
loan portfolio has reached TL 13.5 billion by an increase of 41%. In the same period, share of corporate,
commercial and SME loans in performing loan portfolio is approximately 96%.

Despite the increase in the loan portfolio, the share of non-performing loans in total loans has been
realized as 2.56% well below the sector.

Our Bank, has funded its growing loan portfolio with customer deposits also in 2017. In this period,
customer deposits constitutes 59% of total liabilities and with amount of TL 11.0 billion. In 2017, for
the purpose of diversifying the funding resources, securities have been issued with nominal value of TL
2.3 billion during the first nine months of the year.

In addition to the issuance of domestic securities, the first bond issuance in the form of contribution
capital, compliant with Basel III, was made through public offering abroad on May 2017. The issuance
amounted USD 300 Million, including resale of subordinated bonds of USD 100 Million which was sold
in March 2016. This issuance, which is a first for Fibabanka, was completed successfully. The demand
from England and Europe, Asia, Far East, and the Gulf Countries, which is well above the issued amount,
is a very important indicator of the confidence that international investors have in Fibabanka, Turkish
Banking System and Turkey. This bond issuance will enabie Fibabanka to grow and maintain its support
to Turkish ecaonomy increasingly by strengthening its capital structure.

In 2017, while loan volume has been increased, loans are diversified both in terms of maturity and
sectors, portfolio was targeted with higher return and increasing commission income by increasing
customers. In addition, the Bank's profit has been achieved a steady growth with sustainable profit by
keeping operating expenses under full control. As a result, the Bank’s profit before tax increased by 20%
to TL 137.8 million and net profit after tax amounting to TL 110.1 million. As of 30 September 2017,
consolidated capital adequacy ratio of the Bank is 17.52%.

Our bank continves to perform its structural organizational goals within its plans as well as financial
goals and as of 30 September 2017 offers services to our customers with 80 branches and 1,692
employees.

Hereby, we thank all of our employees, partners and our valued customers which contribute to reaching ~
our targets.

Best regards,

Hiisnii Mustafa Ozyegin Omer Mert
Chairman of the Board of Directors Member of the Board of Directors and
General Manager
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Evaluations Relating to the Bank’s Financial Situation
As of 30 September 2017, the Bank serves with 80 domestic branches and 1,692 employees.

As of third quarter of 2017, total assets of Fibabanka have increased by 39% when compared to the same
period of year 2016 and by 21% when compared to the end of year 2016 and realised as TL. 18,665,429
on consolidated basis and as TL 18,670,044 on unconsolidated basis.

According to the consolidated and unconsolidated financial statements, the loan volume, which used to
be TL 11,441,272 at the end of 2016, reached to TL 14,260,402 as of third quarter of 2017. Share of the
loans in total assets has been realised as 76%.

Credit worthiness of loans and other receivables are monitored systematically in accordance with related
laws and regulations. For new credits opened, the Bank complies with the limits determined under the
Banking Laws and Regulations. Coliaterals are taken for the loans disbursed in order to reduce risk.
According to consolidated and unconsolidated financial statements, as of third quarter of 2017, NPLs
have been realised as TL 369,267 and provisions in the amount of TL 171,766 have been set aside
relating to these loans. Non-performing loan ratio is 2.56% for the period.

According to the unconsolidated financial statements, securities portfolio held for trading is amounted
to TL 63,602 and securities portfolio available for sale is amounted to TL 834,726. Ratio of securities
portfolio to total assets has been realised as 5%.

As of third quarter of 2017, consolidated deposit volume has been realised as TL 11,686,372 and the
unconsolidated deposit volume has been realised as TL 11,691,249,

According to the consolidated financial statements, while third quarter of 2016 closed with TL 82,314
net profit, in third quarter of 2017 net profit has been realised as TL 110,204 with an increase of 34%.

According to the consolidated financial statements, net interest income of the Bank in the first nine
months of 2017 increased by 25% compared to the previous year and realised as TL 466,359, Net
commission income for the third quarter of 2017 was realised as TL 33,052. Total operating income of
the Bank increased by 15% compared to the previous year and realised as TL 527,801, parallel to the
growth of the Bank, and other operating expenses has been realised as TL 265,153 by increasing 20%.

As of 30 September 2017, the Bank’s unconsolidated and consolidated capital adequacy ratios are both
17.52%.
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